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effective manner possible.

SCRS MISSION STATEMENT

The Agency’s Mission Is fo provide a

comprehensive program of benefits fo

PN 2y PP
public cmp]oyees in South Carolina

including pension benefits, group life
msurance medzca] d15ab111ty and long

ferm umauuu 54 buuuﬁfo n Ii’é‘ most

/  SCRS VISION STATEMENT \

LA AR SR E AT Ty

To empower our employees to provide

comprehensive service In a professional
manner for our members, employers, and

P 3 S Lesinvs i
retirees through the ﬂmely and accurate !

processing of payments, claims, inquiries,
and other account information using
effective and appropriate leading euafij

techno]ogy
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systems whose comprehensn/e annual financial
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Purvis W. Collins

Director

December 8, 1995

Honorable David M. Beasley, Governor
and

State Budget and Control Board

State of South Carolina

The annual report of the South Carolina
Retirement Systems for the fiscal year ended June
30, 1995 is submiited herewith. Responsibiiity for
both the accuracy of the data, and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the Systems.
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the
enclosed data are accurate in all material respects
and are reported in a2 manner designed to present
fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the Systems. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the Systems' financial activities
have heen included This report contains

information on the following components:

Poncion Truct Funde

A VERyAUiZ A AU A saEElE

e South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS)

Al DAl: NS o
s Suulh Calunina rO1ice vUIriCers I\Clllclllclll

System (PORS)

¢ Retirement System for Members of the
General Assembly of the State of South
Carolina (GARS)

e Retirement System for Judges and Solicitors
of the State of South Carolina (JSRS)

Internal Service Funds

o State Life & Long-Term Disability Plan (State
Life & LTD Plan)

¢ Agency Operations Internal Service Fund
(Agency Operations)

The SCRS was established July 1, 1945 to

provide retirement and other benefits for teachers

and employees of the State and its political
subdivisions. This system currently has 718

participating empioyers, over 186,000 active

contributing members and 51,000 retired
members.
The PORS was established July 1, 1962 to

provide retirement and other benefits to police
officers and firemen. This system currently has
280 participating employers, approximately
20,000 active contributing members and 4,500
retired members. The GARS and JSRS were
established January 1, 1966 and July 1, 1979,
respectively. These systems are single employer

svstems created to hrnvlrlr- retirement and other

Sy edills LR (0 AN LRI VEMIVALY ANl Vaava

benefits to members of the General Assembly and

State Judges and Solicitors, respectively.

The State Life & LTD Plan is a self insured

P -y

EIUUP lllU aud lUlls“lGllll dlbdblllly Pldll plUVlUUU
to eligible active state, public school and county
empioyees.

The Agency Operations Internal Service Fund
provides for the administration of the four pension
plans and the Life & LTD Plan.

This report consists of five sections.  The
Introductory Section contains the Director's letter
of transmittal, an organization chart of the Agency
and description of responsibilities for each
section. The Financial Section contains the
opinion of our independent accountants, financial

statements and related schednles. The Actuarial

CIATE SULATARRETS,

Saileiiisl 3% 4 aNvuisias




INTRODUCTORY SECTION

Section contains our independent consulting
actuary's certification, a summary of plan
provisions for each System and schedules of
actuarial statistics. =~ The Statistical Section
contains various tables and schedules of
significant data related to the Systems. The
Investment Section contains schedules of

investments and investment growth as well as the
report from the State Treasurer. The Systems are

IVPVIL 11ial SDale 2188l LIS

considered a part of the primary government of

Qént £
the State of South Carolina financial reporting

entity and are mcluded m the comprehensive
annual financial report o

The State for the third consecutive year ended
with budgetary surplus. This year’s surplus
exceeded $392 million. Prior to fiscal year end
the General Assembly directed a total of $195
million to property tax relief ($77 million from
FY 94/95 surplus and $118 million from FY
1995/96 Appropriation Act). This resulted in the
elimination of property tax for school operations

for those whose homes were valued at $100,000

systems.
implementing several major recommendations
from our Re-engineering Study. A centralized
Customer Service Center has been established.
This dedicated staff will function as a singie point
of contact for members and retirees; resulting in a
faster response to the members and improved
quality of service. Additional benefits of this

approach include providing focused accountability
for responses to members and reduced workflow
interruptions within the agency. This center was
recently staffed with approximately 15 employees

who are currently undergoing orientation and
tra;nlng The center is PYhPr‘de to be in nneratmn

We are also developing a centralized Employer
Services Group. Currently the employer reporting
process is fragmented among several departments
within the agency. This new group of employees
will service as a single point of contact for
employers and have the responsibility for ensuring
that core retirement information is reported
accurately and timely. We anticipate that this
group will be in full operation prior to July 1,

1996.

Migration to the UNIX platform continues with

tha + £ £ 1 1 1 i
tne transier OI s¢verai major systems mcludmg

our general ledger, installment service purchase

em and counseling applications.

v
Lo
v
HP

The Systems' management is responsibie for
establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the
Systems are protected from loss or misuse and to
ensure that an adequate system of accounts exists
in order to compile accurate and reliable data for
preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles.
The internal control structure - is designed to
provide reasonable assurance that these objectives
are met.

ASSETS AND INVESTMENTS - Total assets on a

PRI V- SURPRDL [ M- s sardan aAvann
COmpIinea vasis 101 all fuuda exceeded $12u

billion this year; an overall growth of 7.3% over

nn

1994.

The State Treasurer, by statute, is the custodian
and investment manager for all retirement funds.
A variety of investment instruments are
authorized; including obligations of the United
States, its agencies and securities fully guaranteed
by the United States, certificates of deposit,
collateralized repurchase agreements and certain
corporate bonds.

westments (including cash equivalents) grew
the ﬁscal year increasing to

South Caroiina Refirement Sysiems
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principal sources from which the Systems derive
revenues; employee contributions, employer
, and earnings on investments are

on a regular and systematic basis. The three
1995 1994 Increase (Decrease)
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount
{Millions) of Total (Millions) of Total {Millions) Percent

Employee Contributions:
State department employees $ 132.5 7.52% $ 1279 7.85% $ 7.8 3.6%
Public school employees 122.2 6.94% iis.i 7.06% 6.1 . 62%
Other political subdivision employees 70.5 4.00% 65.0 3.99% 5.8 8.5%
Total employes contributions 3252 18.47% 308.0 18 90% 19.7 5.6%

Employer Contributions:
State department employers 170.1 9.66% 161.9 9.94% 4.8 5.1%
Public school employers 1432 8.13% 135.9 8.34% 29 5.4%
Other political subdivision employers 852 4.84% 78.3 4.80% 5.7 8.8%
Total employer contributions 398.5 22.63% 376.1 23.08% 3.4 6.0%
Investment Income 1,031.0 58.54% 9383 57.59% 16.3 9.9%
Other Income 6.4 0.36% 7.0 0.43% (0.5) -8.6%
$ 1,761.1 100.00% $ 1,6294 100.00% $ 48.9 3.1%

Contribution revenue growth is associated primarily with normal growth in new employers participating

in the plans and with growth in active members salary.

EXPENSES - Expenses of the Systems consist

Other programs administered by the Systems

primarily of payments of monthly annuities to  include a group life insurance plan for both active
retired members and their beneficiaries and the  and retired' members, and an accidental death plan
refund of member contributions upon termination.  for police officers.
The following schedule presents a summary of expenses for the Systems for the fiscal year ended June
30, 1995 and the amount and percentage increases over prior year expenses.
1995 1994 Increase (Decrease)

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount

(Millions) of Total {Miilions) of Total (Miltions) Percent
Total Annuities $ 5925 89.3% $ 5258 89.9% $ 66.7 12.7%
Refunds 52.0 7.8% 449 7.6% 7.1 15.8%
Group Life 8.9 1.4% 8.1 1.4% 0.8 9.9%
Administrative Charges and other Expenses 10.1 1.5% 63 ) 1.1% 3.8 §0.3%

$ 6635 100.0% $ _ 585.1 100.0% $ 784 13.4%
FUNDING - The overal! objective in the funding  Systems continue to make progress and
of any retirement system is to accumulate improvement in the level of fu nding, thereby
sufficient funds to pay benefits when due. The  assuring all participants of the continued financial

stability of the System.
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Based on the most recent (July 1, 1994) valuation
and based on actuarial methods used to fund the

SCRS

Assets for valuation purposes
Unfunded accrued liability
Accrued liability liquidation period

OTHER INFORMATION

INDEPENDENT AUDIT - An audit is performed

Al e T 1 Qa_a_ BRI P

dﬂﬂudliy unacer e uerbl.lUIl Ul tne Staie [‘\UU]LOI' S
office. The firm of Crisp, Hughes & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants audited the financial
statements of the Systems for the year ended June
30, 1995. Their report is included in the financial
section of this report.

AWARDS - The Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the South
Carolina  Retirement  Systems  for  its

comprehensive annual financial report for the
figeal year ended June ?n 1994, The Certificate

1a3wRa i 775, LR L) 8 ¥ § L1+ 13 w)

of Achlevement is a prestigious national award

i Fiyrrn 1l +h hact
TeCOENIZINg coniormance Wil uic it 1gubbt

standards for preparation of state and local

SUVUllllIlUlll lllldll&ldl IUPUI iS.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of

Achievement, a government unit must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized financial
“report, whose contents conform to program
standards.  Such reports must satisfy both

($

$ 10,308,386
2,468,097
29 years

Systems the fo]]owmg actuarial summary is
presented.

PORS GARS JSRS
in thousands)
$ 1,096,530 $28,622 $ 52,040
104,560 19,177 31,282
11 years 30 years 25 years

generally accepted accounting principles and

dppuuamc lcgdl rcqu:rcmems

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period
of one year only. The Systems have received a
Certificate of Achievement for the last 8
consecutive years (fiscal years ended 1987-1994).
We believe our current report continues to
conform to the Certificate of Achievement
Program requirements, and we are submitting it to
GFOA.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS - The preparation of

teppaldlion

this report on a timely basis was made possﬂJIe by
the dedicated service of the staff of ocur finance

department. It is intended to prov:de

comprehensive and reliable information about the

Systems and as a means of determining
hi

U o S nccate lhald o
11 101 e assCLs 11€14 10r our

Aol atia P

I prUllblUlU blUWdl
membership. -

I would like to express my gratitude to the staff,
the consuitants, the Board and to the people who
have diligently worked to assure the continued
responsible and successful operations of the
Systems.

Respectfully submitted,

e

'
P v (50l

Purvis W. Collins
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INTRODUCTORY SECTION
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SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEMS - OUR FIRST FIFTY YEARS

i i b s i

JULY I, 1945

The South Carolina Retirement System
was established effective July 1, 1945 by
an act of the Legistature. This date
capresented an important milestone for the

JULY I, 1964

Average final compensation (afc) effective
July 1, 1964 with the average of highest 5
out of 10 last years.

T IAJ;
£ 30, 1975

JONL G,

‘Assets totaled $914.8 million and the
aumber of active members reached a
grand total of 118,161, The number of
retired members as of June 30, 1975

teachers and employees covered by the
plan.

The creation date of July 1, 1945 falls
between two historical events of worldwide

.

significance. World War 11 ofiicially 8ndec
with the surrender of the German forces
and the declaration of May 8, 1945 as V-E
(Victory in Europe) Day and the surrender
of the Japanese forces and a formal
signing on September 2, 1945 aboard the
battleship Missouri. This era of time takes
its placa in history as a period of hope and
peace for the entire world. A chronology of
key events over a fifty year period is
presented in order for all of us to take a
few moments of time to mark our
accomplishments with pride and integrity.

NOVEMBER310, 1947

The first annual actuarial valuation was
prepared .&shof June 30, 1946 and the
results were presented on November 10,
1047. Assets as of June 30, 1946 totaled
$2.6 million and the number of active
members reached a grand total of 26,449
The number of retired members as of June
30, 1946 totaled 64 with a payroll of $38.8
thousand.
payable upon the request of any employee
at age 60 and any teacher at age 60 or 35
years teaching experience.

JUNE 30, 1 955

Assets as of June 30, 1955 totaled $69.8
million with investments comprising $68.0
million or §7% of tota! assets.

JULY 1, 1955
Social security coverage was made
available to state and local employees in
South Carofina.

FEBRUARY 1, 1962
Survivor benefit added at age 60 with 20
years of service.

JULY 1, 1962

The Police Officers Retirement System
was established effective July 1, 1962 for
the purpose of providing retirement
allowances and other benefits for police
officers and firefighters.

A retirement allowance was -

JUNE 30, 1965

Assets as of June 30, 1965 totaled $224.4
million and the number of active members
reached a grand total of 97,580. The
number of retired members as of June 30,

million.

JANUARY 1, 1 966

The General Assembly Retirement System
was established effective January 1, 1966
for the purpose of providing retirement
allowances and other benefits for members
of the General Assembly.

JULY 1, 1966
Vesting was reduced from 20 years to 15
years. A cost of fiving increase was
granted for those persons who retired prior
to July 1, 1966.

JULY 1, 1968

Annual cost of living increases were
granted (if approved). Pre-retirement death
benefit was added.

JULY 1, 1969

Thirty-five years (35) years of service
credit qualified for full benefits.  This
included new and old retirees.

JULY 1, 1870

Average final compensation changed to
average of highest 3 fiscal years of salary.
Disability retirement eligibility changed
from 10 years to 5 years.

JULY 1, 1971

‘Accidental Death Program was created
under the Police Officers Retirement
System for the purpose of providing an
annuity to the widow (or specified
beneficiary) of an active member covered
under the program whose death occurred
during the performance of job duties.

JULY 1, 1972
Benefit formula changed to 1.25% for first
$4,800 of AFC; 1.65% of AFC over $4,800.

of $35.4
miltion. Requirements for full formula
benefits changed from 35 to 30 years of
service.

Annual leave payments up to 45 days may
be included in average final compensation
as applicable.

JULY 1, 1979

Vesting was reduced from 15 years to 5
years. The Judges & Solicitors Retirement
was established effective July 1, 1979 for
the purpose of providing retirement
allowances and other benefits for judges
and solicitors.

JULY 1, 1982
Retirement contributions were deferred for
faderal and state income tax purposes.

JUNE 30, 1985

Assets totaled $3.623 billion and the
number of active members reached a
grand total 145,795. The number of retired
members as of June 30, 1985 totaled
30,977 with a payroll of $142.5 million.

JULY 1, 1988
Benefit formula changed to 1.7% of AFC.

JULY 1, 1989
Benefit formula changed to 1.82% of AFC.

JUNE 30, 1995

‘Assets totaled $11.5 billion and the number
of active members reached a grand total
186,825. The number of retired members
as of June 30, 1985 totaled 51,260 with a
payroli of $530.5 million. :

In conclusion, may the next fifty
years continue with hope and
prosperity into the twenly-first

century. We will all advance . :

forward fogether in the name of
progress and we will turn over the

torch with pride to the next, 3}

generation.

M
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INTRODUCTORY SECTION

ORGANIZATIONAL DESCRIPTION (
The structural organization of the Systems is depicted on the chart shown on the previous page. A brief

description of the primary functions performed by each department follows:

Financial Services Division:
Pension ACCﬁuﬁ[lhg Section - x\esponsww for maintenance o a i3
investment accountmg, financial accounting records, and the financial control of member contribution records.

Vesodm s naad Qavnriona Qant AA
Installment Service Section - Administration of the installment °erv=ce purchase program.

Member Accounts Section - Responsible for financial control over all detail member contribution records.

Field Services Section - Primary functions are to meet with governing bodies of various entities considering

obtaining coverage under one or more of our programs and meeting with employers concerning reporting

nrocedures and nolicies. Resnonsible for nrocessing all new.employver membership applications.

Inuvvuvuvp Qv pUavats. SRESpiiiseeit 28 prutbasiiig a2l % CLIPIO YT IRRINDEINMIID appitaliils.

Budgetary Accounting Section - Respon31ble for the administration of the Agency’s payroll function, fixed
asset inventory system, and budgetary accounting function.

Enrollment Section - Responsible for maintenance of all member enrollments, beneficiary information, and
demographics.

5 an ursements,

Counseling Service Division:
Counselmg Section - Responsible for counseling members relating to retirement, calculation of all annuity
benefits and processing all retirement documents upon actual retirement of a member. Responsible for
administration of counseling services for the long-term disability plan and in-service group life insurance
benefits.
Medical Section - Responsible for administration of medical evaluations for all retirement disability programs
and the LTD program.
On-Site Services - Responsible for maintenance of satellite offices statewide on a rotating basis.
Pre-Retirement Section - A section with the overall objective of better preparing the membership for retirement
through conducting seminars and meetings with empioyee and emplioyer representatives.
Service Credit Section - Responsible for the compiling and automation of retirement service credit for all
members of the Retirement System and calculation of the cost for all prior service purchases.

Operational Services Division:
Data Processmg Section - Responsible for the design, implementation and control over all automation
.............. fal. fee 2l o Qlornbaene

dppubduunb Wililiil in€ Sysicims.
Imaging Section - Responsible for the maintenance of complete historical records of each member.

Benefits Services Division:
Benefite Pavroll Section - Resnonsible for the disbursement of monthly annuity payments to ail retired

-members and administration of post-retirement group life insurance benefits. Admlmsters payroll function for
long term disability plan.

Refunds Section - Responsible for the disbursement of lump sum payments to members who terminate covered
employment prior to retirement.

Customer Service Division:
Customer Service Section - Responsible for answering incoming phone calls from external clients of the
Systems in an accurate, courteous, and professional manner. Administration of on-line requests for information
including counseling, membership and educating population about options, vesting, federal and state laws,
Systems’ policies and procedures, and applicable state regulations.

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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CURRENT LEGISLATION

Significant amendments enacted during the 1995 Session of the General Assembly were as tollows:

Wﬁmﬁtﬂﬁﬂm@@“ﬂmmc Relations Order (QDRO) with

R.74

the Retirement Systems.

An Act limiting tﬁe compensation on which contributions are based to $150,000 per calendar
em on_or afte an .u‘

year for persons who become members of the Re - 0
1996. This is in accordance with 401(a)(17) of the Internal Revenue Code. There is no limit

to those who become members of the Retirement Systems prior to January 1, 1996.

artive

P

R.21

6

R.211

4% Retirees who return to W

Ikyl

Provides for contingent beneficiaries for active members of the Retirement Systems—Active
members (not retired) may name contingent beneficiaries to receive benefits if all primary

beneficiaries are deceased.

Appropriations Act

The earnings limitation increased from $12,000 to $12,500 per fiscal year (July 1 - June 30).
ork for an employer covered under the Retirement Systems are

limited to earning $12,500 per fiscal year without affecting their benefits. If they exceed this
limit, their benefits will be discontinued the following month and will remain discontinued

for the rest of the fiscal year.

Surviving spouées of police officers killed in the line of duty may continue to receive the
death benefit under the Accidental Death Program after remarriage.

. .
South Carolina Retirement Systems
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CENTIHED PUBIC ACOOUNTANTS AND CONSUUTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To:  Edgar A. Vaughn, Jr,, CPA
State Auditor

State of South Carolina
Columbia, South Carolina

We have audited the combined and combining financial statements of the South Carolina Retirement
Systems (as described in Note I) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1995, as listed in the table of
contents. These combined and combining financial statements are the responsibility of the Systems’
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

A§ described in Note 1, the combined and combining financial statements present only the funds of
the Spyth Carolina Retirement Systems and are not intended to present fairly the financial position,
results of operations or cash flows of the State of South Carolina in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the combined and combining financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Systems at June 30, 1995, and the results of its

operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note XIII to the financial statements, the System is a party to a legal action claiming
substantial amounts as a result of the computation of retirement benefits for certain retired members.
The ultimate outcome of the litigation cannot presently be determined. Accordingly, no provision
for any liability has been made in the accompanying financial statements.

1 Creekview Court « P.O. Box 25849  Greenville, South Carolina 20616 « (803) 288-5544 = FAX (303) 458-8519
Other Offices: Ashevilie, Boone, Burnsville, Charlotte, Durham, Sylva, NC

Mexiberof The American lastitute uf Cenihed Public Accountants, The Coatiaenisl Assoriation of CPA Firms, Inc.,
The Inteecuntutenial Arcousting Agsoviates and The North Caroling and Souts Larolma Associalions of UPAs

i
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Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming an opinion on thc mbin

financial statements taken as a whole. The Required Supplementary Informauon
pggsgntgd for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of flfn: bi

on
A% Wi IV WU

combining ﬁnancxal statements. Such mformatxon has been subjected to the audttmg procedures

annliad 1n tha mu-lh nftha rnmhinad nnd cnmhinicns finona A
appll\.u i UV QUL UL WL COINMULTIICA dilila \-unuuuuus 1inanciai slaiCimenis ana, lll our upuuun, IS Iall'ly

fir
stated in all material respects in relation to the combined and combining financial statements taken

inl ctntasmanmto nae

— " an 1995 (except for Note Xiil A s 4 _}
September 29, 1995 (except for Note XIII, as to ' V- ¢
which the date is November 22, 1995) LAMP NM‘“‘ ’ G’- ! U’P
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SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES
JUNE 30, 1995
With comparative totals for June 30, 1994

{amounts expressed in thousands)

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY

INTERNAL SERVICE PENSION TRU
1995 1994 1995 1994
ASDLITS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4987 § 4069 $ 998,799 § 367,932
Receivables:
Contributions 108,728 98,514
Accrued interest 255 212 173,264 163,119
Investments, at amortized cost:
United States Government securities
(market value - $3,520,964 in 1995, $3,150,877 in 1994) 2,743,465 2,617,708
United States Government agencies and government-insured
securities (market value - $3,014,049 in 1995; $2,660,471 in 1994) 12,791 11,293 2,720,740 2,533,879
Corpgrate bgaeds
(market vglue -$3.644,042 in 1995; $3.048,497 in 1994) 4,647 3,190 3,359,478 2,998,814
Financial"krt‘d other
(market value - $2,776,967 in 1995; 33,079,882 in 1994) 3,427 3,656 2,731,671 3,184,374
Total investments 20,865 18,139 11,555,354 11,334,775
Deferred yield adjustment for security exchanges ’ (30,550) (29,897)
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 1,781 721 5,002 5,085
Total assets 3 27,888 § 23,141 § 12,810,597 $ 11,939,528
_ LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities: i
Accounts payable - unsettled investment purchases S 3,000 $ 2,000 §$ 127,566 $ 351,463 -
Due to State Health Insurance Plan 15,488 18,107
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 916 694 2,409 2,387
Compensated absences payable 583 542
Incurred but unpaid claims 16,669 12,925
Total liabilities 21,168 16,161 145,463 371,957
Fund equity:
Contributed capital - governmental 8 8
Retained earnings 6,712 6,972
Fund balances 12,665,134 11,567,571
Totat fund equity 6,720 6,980 12,665,134 11,567,571
Total liabilitics and fund equity 3 27888 § 23,141 §$ 12,810,597 § 11,939,528

See notes to financial statements

ll
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SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND
SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1995
Witlh comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 1994
(amounts expressed in thousands)

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
INTERNAL SERVICE PENSION TRUST
1995 1994 1995 1994
Operating revenues:
Contribution revenue:
Employee contributions $ 325,195 % 307,987
. Employer contributions 398,498 376,139
2 Premium revenue:
Group life insurance $ 1,280 $ 1,267
Long term disability 4663 4617
Operating charge to Pension Trust Funds 10,056 6,232
Supplemental retirement benefits funded by the State 6,443 7,006
i Investment jngome 1,475 1,010 1,030,960 938,342
: Other income 262 231
Total operating revenues 17,736 13,357 1,761,096 1,629,474
E Operating expenses:
Refunds of contributions to members . 52,038 44,857
Regular retirement benefits 585,453 518,183
Supplemental retirement benefits 6.443 7,006
S " Group life insurance claims 1,247 1,182 8,861 8,124
FE " Accidental death benefits 564 575
Long term disability claims ' 7,346 2,123
Administrative charges . 10,056 6,232
Personal services 4.471 3,990
 Contractual services ] 2,900 2,196
‘Supplies 429" 362
: Fixed charges 34 "
. Fringe benefits 1,045 985
" Traveland other 116 89
-~ Depreciation 408 259 118 17
Total operating expenses 17,996 11,197 663,533 585,134
Net income/operating income (loss) (260) 2,160 1,097,563 1,044,340
Retained earings/fund balances at beginning of year 6,972 4,812 11,567,571 10,523,231
Retained eamnings/fund balances at end of year $ 6,712 § 6,972 $ 12,665,134 § 11,567,571

See notes to financial statements.
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SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMEN]

M

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

- YEARENDEDJUNE30,1995
[) e

With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 1994

(amounts expressed in thousands)

1995 1994
Cash flows from operating activities:
4Qpﬂatmgmmme (toss) $ (260) $ 2,160
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Investment income classified as operating income (1,475) (1,010)
Depreciation expense 408 259
Loss on disposal of equipment 5
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts payable and
accrued expenses 222 148
Increase in compensated absences payable 4] 49
‘Idtrease (decrease) in incurred but unpaid claims 3,744 (720)
¥, Total adjustments 2,945 (1,274)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,685 886
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Purchase of fixed assets (1,473) (130)
Net cash used for capita! and related financing activities (1,473) (130)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of investments 20,229 26,299

Purchase of investments (21,955) (29,679)

Interest received 1,432 887
Net cash (used in) investing activities (294) (2,493)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 918 (1,737
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,069 5,806
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 4,987 $ 4,069

See notes to financial statements.

South Carolina Refirement Systems
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT sySTEMa.

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Description of the Entity:

The financial statements of the South Carolina
Retirement Systems (Systems) presented herein contain
the following funds:

Pension Trust Funds

e South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS)

e South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System
(PORS)

e Retirement System for Members of the General
Assembily of the State of South Carolina (GARS)

¢ Retirement System for Judges and Solicitors of the

State of South Carolina (JSRS)

Each pension trust fund operates on ar

0
=]
£
g
[+
53
[*]
3
2
n

 basis; funds may not be utilized for a ny purpose other
than for the benefit of each plan's participants. The

SCRS and PORS are cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plans. The GARS and JSRS

WLirivAe Uwiibaiy puiisaial JARD

~ are considered smgle—employer defined benefit plans.

Internal Service Funds

‘s. State Life and Long-Term Disability Plan (State
. . Life & LTD Plan)

s Agency Operations Internal Service Fund (Agency

"~ Qperations)

‘The State Life & LTD Plan is a self insured group life
".and long term disability plan provided to eligible active
‘state, public school and county employees. The
. :Agency Operations Internal Service Fund provides for
the administration of all pension trust funds and the
‘State Life & LTD Plan through annual administrative
. - ‘charges ( $10.1 million for the Pension Trust Fund and
+-.-7$355,000 for the State Life & LTD Plan) assessed to
&ach fund. Charges to the State Life & LTD Plan are
«. ‘reflected as operating transfers between internal service
~funds. These assessments are based on approved
: ‘f—budgeted costs anticipated to be incurred in the

£ ¢h
1 i r“spect; ve funds.

Y gneratt
) _\_lyyluuon )

--------------- Villo GV pas Rodfaling =000

Carolina's primary government and are included in the
»Comnrf_:hen_s;w- Annual Financial Renort of the State of

gl I'ill -»_r_

- South Carolina. In making this determination, factors

.7 . Thi‘ Rphrnmnnf Q\lsfnmn are nart of the State of South

of financial accountability, governance and fiduciary
responsibility of the State were considered.

Summary of Significant Accounting Principles:

Fund Structure - The Systems' accounts are
maintained in accordance with the principles of fund
accounting. This is the procedure whereby resources
for various purposes are classified for accounting and
reporting purposes into funds that are in accordance
with specified activities or objectives.  Separate
accounts are maintained for each fund; however, in the

arnmtnamuing  Anmala ad £i i
accompanying combined financial statements funds

that have similar characteristics have been. combined.

The fc'!cw'“" fund types are nsed b\l the Q\mtem_

Fiduciary Fund Types

Pension Trust Funds - These funds are used to account
for the activities of the four public employee retirement
systems administered by the Systems. The following

accounts are used thhm the pension trust funds.

The Employee Fund is credited with all contributions
made by active members of the Systems. Interest is
added to each member's individual account at an annual
rate of 6 percent. Upon termination of employment
prior to retirement, employee contributions and
accumulated interest may be refunded from this fund to
the employee. Upon retirement, members' accumulated
contributions and interest are transferred to the
Employer Fund for subsequent payment of benefits.

The Employer Fund is the fund to which aii employer
retirement contributions and investment earnings of the
Employee and Employer Funds are credited. Interest
eamings allocated to individual member accounts in the
Employee Fund are transferred from the Employer
Fund. At retirement, accumulated employee

Armembuilavidimena
contributions and interest are transferred from the

Employee Fund to the Employer Fund. All annuities

and admlnlstrauvp expenses of the Q\IQmeQ are hﬂld

from the Employer Fund.

The Group Life Insurance Fund is the fund to which
participating employers contribute for the purpose of
providing a life insurance benefit to active and retired
members of the Systems. Employer contributions and
earnings are credited to this fund. Group life insurance
benefit payments are charged to this fund.

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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The Accidental Death Fund is the fund to which

Contributions - Employee and employer contributions

participating employers in the PORS contribute for the
purpose of providing annuity benefits to beneficiaries
of police officers and firemen killed in the actual
performance of their duties. This fund and jts benefits

available to the beneficiary. Employer contributions
and investment eamnings are credited to this fund.
Monthly annuities are disbursed from this fund.

are reported on the accrual basis. Substantially all
contributions receivable are collected within 30 days of
year-end.

—are independent of —any other retirement benefit  Investments - Investments are valued at amortized

cost. The Systems amortize bond premiums and
accrete bond discounts using the effective interest
method.  Securities and securities transictions are
lcuc\.wu i C dl K

O aae-04dlE

Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds - These
funds are used to account for services provided to other

funds, departments and agencies of govemment These

QPl’Vl(‘P "ro aeg on sen COS eco

basis. These funds account for activities similar to
those found in the private sector.” The Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its
predecessor organizations have issued accounting and
reporting standards for activities in the private sector.
The Systems proprietary funds have elected not to
apply standards issued by those organizations after
November 30, 1989. The funds, however, have applied
all applicable pronoucements issued by the
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
The Tollowifig funds are reported as internal service
funds: )

State Life and Long-Term Disability Plan - A self-
insured plan providing life insurance benefits and long
term disability benefits to active employees covered
under the State Health Insurance Program. Premiums
are set by the State Budget and Control Board.
Information concerning eligibility and benefits are
provided in the Systems publlcatlon "SCRS - Long
Term Disability Plan."

Agency Operations Internal Service Fund - A fund used
to account for the cost of operating the State Life &
LTD Plan and the pension trust funds. No state funds
are appropriated for operating purposes.

Basis of Accounting - All funds are accounted for
using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized
when incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Systems classify as
cash and cash equivalents cash on deposit in financial
institutions and cash on deposit in the State's cash
management pool. The Systems also classify certain
short-term highly liquid securities as cash equivalents.

South Carolina Retirement Systems

basis. Gains and losses on bond exchanges within the
pension trust funds are accounted for under the deferral
and amortization method whereby net gains and losses

stralght -line basns over the shorter of the life of the
bond sold or purchased. Any gains or losses arising
from non-exchange bond transactions are not deferred
and are recognized as current year investment income.

Gains and losses on sales of investments within the

. internal service funds are recognized in the period of

sale. Investment income consists of interest earned
during the year, amortization of premiums and
accretion of discounts, and amortization of the deferred

“yield adjustment on securities exchanges within

‘sick leave.

pension trust funds and recognized gains/losses on
bond transactions.

Fixed Assets - Fixed assets are capitalized at cost and
depreciated on a straight-line basis over an estimated
five year useful life for equipment and forty year life
for building.

Compensated Absences - State employees are entitled
to accrue and carry forward at calendar year-end a
maximum of 180 days sick leave and 45 days annual
vacation leave. Upon termination of employment the
employees are entitled to be paid for accumulated
unused annual vacation leave up to a maximum of 45
days, but are not entitled to any payment for unused
In addition, the compensated absences
liability includes leave earned for which employees are
entitled to paid time off or payment at termination. The
liability for compensated absences is accrued based on
recorded balances of unused leave, current salaries at
year end and salary related fringe benefits.

Incurred but Unpaid Claims and Claims Expenses -
Insurance claims are expensed as incurred over the
period of coverage. The Systems establish an unpaid
claims liability for claims in the process of review,
incurred claims which, under the terms of the plan, are
not payable (long term disability plan) and for incurred
claims not yet reported.

I
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Risk Management - The Systems pay insurance
premiums to certain other State agencies to cover risks
that may occur in normal operations Several state
funds accumulate assets and the State itself assumes all
risks for unemployment compensatlon workers

compensauon heaith, dental and group life insurance.

The South Carolina Retirement System w
effective July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions o

Section 9-1-20 of the 1976 South Carolina Code of

the purpose of providing retirement
other benefits for teachers and

Vv veviiviio wLalitls

Laws for

~1l ancrac o
anowances und

employees of the State and political subdivisions

thavenf

LIC VR,

The South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System
was established, effective July 1, 1962, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 9-11-20 of the Code of Laws for
the purpose of providing retirement allowances and

other benefits for police officers and firemen.

' The Retirement System for Members of the General
Assembly of the State of South Carolina was created,
effective January 1, 1966, pursuant to the provisions of
Section 9-9-20 of the Code of Laws to provide
retirement allowances and other benefits for members
of the General Assembly.

The Retirement System for Judges and Solicitors of the
State of South Carolina was created, effective July 1,
. 1979, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-8-20 of

‘the Code of Laws for the purpose of providing
. .retirement allowances and other benefits for judges and
solicitors.

As an alternative to membership in the SCRS certain
‘teachers and administrators of the institutions of hlﬂh(’l‘

LVWHWIIWI G GLINA CARAIIRARLL 1S DX UIC LQISBN0L s O 2150EE

1987 may elect to
The SCRS assumes no liability for this group other than
-payment of contributions to designated vendors.
Contributions to the ORP are at the same rates as the
. -SCRS, with 3.3% of the employer contribution rate
- -retained by the SCRS and applied to the unfunded
-accrued liability of the System and the balance remitted
" to the respective vendor for credit to the participant's
account,

Based on covered payr’oll of $103.9 million, employee
and employer contributions of $6.2 and $7.8 million,
respectively were received during the year ended June
30, 1995; $3.4 million of which was retained by the

SCRS and reported as employer contributions.

A bnef summary of beneﬁt provisions, eligibility

SCRS - Generally all employees are required to
participate in and contribute to the System as a
condition of employment.

PORS - Generally all full-time employees whose
principal duties are the preservation of public order,
protection or prevention and control of property
destruction by fire are required to participate in and
contribute to the System as a condition of employment.

GARS - All persons are required to participate in and
contribute to the System upon taking office as a
member of the General Assembly.

JSRS - All solicitors, judges of a Circuit or Family
Court and justices of the Court of Appeals and Supreme
Court are required to participate in and contribute to the
System upon taking office.

Pension Benefits:
SCRS - Monthly pension payable at age 65
credited service regardless of age.

1. £+
benefits are payable as early as age 55.

vested for a deferred annuity with 5 years service.

Member ig

AVaSINUNL e

PORS - Monthly pension payable at age 55 with
minimum 5 years service or 25 years credited service
regardless of age. Member is vested for a deferred
annuity with 5 years service.

GARS - Member is eligible for a monthly pension at
age 60 or 30 years of credited service. Member is
vested for a deferred annuity with 8 years service.

JSRS - Pension benefit payable at age 70 with 15 years
service, age 65 with 20 years service or with 25 years

service regardless of age.

Membership, benefits and employee and employer

contribution requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of

the S.C. Code of Laws of 1976 (as amended).

- South Carolina Retirement Systems
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| | The number and types of employers contributing to each System and the annual covered payroll (in thousands) of -
1 k each tvne for the year ended June 3 2{) 1905 are as feug\'nc
|
1 |
: State* Scheos! Other Total
SCRS
Number of Employers 123 104 491 718
Annual Covered Payroll 3 1,767,547 $ 1,852,620 §$ 811,912 § 4,432,079
Average Number of
Contributing Members 68,053 78,727 40,045 186,825
PORS
Number of Employers 41 239 280
' Annual Covered Payroll 3 220,268 $ 258,119 § 478,387
Average Number of
' Contributing Members 9,749 10,514 20,263
(CADRPC
NFRIND
Number of Employers 2 2
Annual Covered Payroll 3 3,808 $ 3,808
Average Number of
Contributing Members 170 170
JSRS
Number of Employers 2 2
Annual Covered Payroll 5 9,827 $ 9,827
Average Number of
Contributing Members 113 113
*Note: Each State Agency is considered a separate employer for reporting puiposes

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS TOTAL

a) Retirees and beneficiaries

receiving benefits and terminated

employees entitled to benefits

but not yet receiving them 153,657 9,941 280 87 163,965
b)  Fully vested active employees 111,772 10,042 53 65 121,932

Nonvested active employees 62,201 8,623 159 44 71,027

Total active employees 173,973 18,665 212 109 192,959

Total 327,630 28,606 492 196 356,924

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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HI. INVESTMENTS AND DEPOSITS:

The following table presents market values of investments (in thousands) at June 30, 1995. All investments are
required to be insured or registered, or heid by the State or its agent in the name of the State Treasurer as custodian.

" PENSION TRUST FUNDS INTERNAL
SERVICE GRAND TOTAL
SCRS PORS GARS JSRS TOTAL FUNDS TOTAL 1994

$ 3,235,255 $ 270,790 3 9,323 10,596 $ 3,520,964 $ 3,520,964 $ 3,150,877
U.8. Government agencies
and government-insured
securities 2,657,888 311,967 7,633 23,471 3,000,959 $ 13,090 3,014,049 2,660,471
Corporate bonds 3,202,917 409,715 8,788 17,659 3,639,079 4,963 3,644,042 3,048,497
Financial and other 2,515,475 243,509 4,376 10,223 2,773,583 3.384 2,776,967 3,079,882

$ 11,606,535 $ 1235981 $ 30,120

61,949 § 12,934,585 $ 21,437 8 12,956,022 $ 11,939,727

No provision is considered necessary for possible losses

due to decline in market value of securities as the

Systems have the ability to either hold the securities to
it i v, v avalhansa arvale PRI P

lumuul,j O XTnaiigc suci SeCurities

- 'to.realize any significant losses.

U UU not expect

As préscribed by Statute, the State Treasurer is the

“.custodian and investment manager of all investments

: and deposits of the Systems. The Systems may invest in
a varletv of instruments including obligations of the
‘United States and its agencies and securities fully
guaranteed by the United States, certain corporate
. obligations, certain shares of Federal savings and loan
-associations and State chartered savings and loan

associations, and collateralized repurchase agreements.

Through a custodial agent, the SCRS and PORS
<-participate in a securities lending program whereby
:seurities are loaned to selected brokers for the purpose
~of:generating additional income to the Systems.

~‘Securities loaned under this program are collateralized
'y'"éecurities at 102% of the market value of securities
,»Oaned Securities under loan are maintained on the
: Systems' financiai records. As the Systems do not trade
':'Or_ ell the collateral received in the securities lending
¥ gsluul, such collateral is not considered an asset of the
'Systems and a corresponding hablhty is not required on

Danls on car me s

Book value of securities on loan at

llne 30, 1995 totaled $813 million for the SCRS and

76 million for the PORS

__________ a2 wal AING,

balance sheet.

-V.On June 30, 1995, the Syseems

eld collateralized
-_'-lnel‘tgage obhgatlons (CMO’s) in our portfolios. The
,MOS in these portfolios consist of the nlanned

L S B )

-tamorttzatlons class-1 (PAC 1) tranche of these issues.

The PAC-1 tranche CMO structure securities were
entered into for several reasons: (1) to protect the
Retirement  Systems  portfolios  from principal
prepayment risk during an environment of declining
interest rates, (2) to provide incremental yield above
that available on corporate securities with similar terms,
(3) to provide diversification in the portfolios, (4) to

maintain the high quality of government-sponsored
cred ts in the portfolios, and (5) to utilize the estimated

future term cash flows provided by these securities to

match the term of the liabilities of the Retirement

Systems. These securities are all rated AAA by the

major rating agencies and the PAC-1 structure is a

June 30, 19935 June 30, 1994

Book Value Market Value Book Value Market Value

—_—rr oL AL SLATet Yae
SCRS $ 1256013 3§ 1,296,383 3 1370994 § 1,542,279
PORS 90,652 92,562 119,667 117,204
GARS 1,248 1,356 1,248 1,257
JSRS 4,322 4440 4,381 } 4,i56
Total $ 1346295 § 1,394.711 3 1,696,290 § 1,664,896

On June 30, 1995, the Systems also held asset-backed
securities in our portfolios. These securities had an
average life of one to three years with a legal final
maturity of 5 to 6 years. These securities represent an
undivided ownership interest in a trust consisting of credit
card and auto loan receivables. Most of these securities
were purchased in 1992 and 1993 when short-term

incremental ylelds above other similar maturlty securities’

\l'liﬂ\nnf meranaing tha gl tha wawmtfaliag

Thnca
T LLIVUL  VIvdolLng,  uiv TisK l,u jitivg puuxuuua 1 1CST

securities are rated AAA by the major rating agencies.

h

—
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The Systems held the foliowing asset-backed securities  All deposits with financial institutions are required to be '

(in thousands): msured or collaterahzed w1th securities held by the State - ..
June 30,1998 June 30, 1994 0 agent in the 3 er's name-as custodian. 59

Book V Market Va Book Value  Market Valve g

- T Certain short-term hxghly hquld securities with an original .3

SCRS 3 206219 $ 195031 § I82581 8 186,636
PORS 1rous 2336 5119 a5.456 maturity of three months or less are considered cash '
GARS 248 u5 L 468 equivalents in accordance with Governmental Accounting
0.4 219, 431,197 35, §

UeALTDRm o s o e Standards Board Statement 9.
Toial 3 230,659 $ 219877 % 431,675 § 436,068

Cash and cash equivalents whose cost and approximate market value (in thousands) at June 30, 1995 were
A nftha fallar

<omposea orthe rohow hls

Cash Equivalents _
Repurchase = Commercial Total
Cash Agreements Paper Total 1994
Pension Trust Funds
SCRS $ 281 % 884,550 $ 9983 3§ 894,814 §$ 348,104
PORS 60 99,410 99,470 15,092
GARS 4 2,435 - 2,439 2,307
JSRS 1 2,075 2,076 2,429
346 988,470 9,983 998,799 367,932
Internal Service Funds
State Life and LTD Plan 3) 4,010 4,007 3,562
Agdncy Operations 980 980 507
Y 977 4,010 4,987 4,069
Totals $ 1,323 § 992,480 $ 9983 § 1,003,786 $§ 372,001
IV. FUNDING STATUS AND PROGRESS: Interest rate - 8.0% per annum, compounded annually,

effective for all plans.
The pension’ benefit obligation as shown in the
following schedule is the actuarial present value of  Salary scales -
credited projected benefits. This is the standardized

disclosure measure of the present value of pension SCRS PORS GARS JSRS
benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary
increases and any sfep-rate benefits, estimated to be  a) Inflation 50% 50% 5.0% 5.0%

payable in the future as a result of employee service to  b) Merit or seniority 1.5% 2.5% 1.0% 1.5%

date. The measure is intended to help users assess the

systems’ funding status on a going concern basis and  Salary scales for the SCRS and PORS are on a graded

assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets  scale based on age. The above figures are

to pay benefits when due. This is the required  representative of that scale.

disclosure measure as prescribed by Governmental

Accounting Standards Board Statement 5. This  Post retirement benefit increases - 4.0% for SCRS,

measure is independent of the actuarial funding method ~ PORS and JSRS. No increases assumed for the GARS.

used to determine contributions to the Systems:. The

pension benefit obligation was determined based on the ~ Separations - Rates of separanon due to withdrawal,

actuarial valuations performed as of July 1, 1994, death, service retirement and disability are based upon
tables constructed from past expenence of the plans.

Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the

pension obligations are as follows:

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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SCRS PORS GARS JSRS TOTAL
, (All Amounts In Millions)
Pension benefit obligation:
a) Retlrees and beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits
and terminated employees
entitled to benefits but
not yet recetving them $ 6,095 § 562.4 $ 268 § 440 $  6,724.7
; b) Current employees:
Accumulated employee -
contributions including ) ,
- allocated investment income 2,573.3 226.6 5.6 9.0 2,814.5
Employer-financed vested 1,127.7 125.9 5.8 14.7 1,274.1
Employer-financed nonvested 3,917.9 369.3 7.6 4.1 4,298.9
7,618.9 721.8 19.0 27.8 8,387.5
Total pension benefit
obligation 13,710.4 1,284.2 45.8 71.8 15,112.2
Net asgets available for
. benefits, at amortized cost 10,308.4 1,096.5 28.6 52.0 11,485.5
~ Unfunded pension benefit
obligation $ 34020 § 187.7 $ 172 § 198 $ 36267
4 - Net assets available for benefits,
“at market value. $ 10,865.1 § 1,143.4 §$ 30.1 § 545 $§ 12,093.1

Tha ~ad

2l amcs an sl e A P,

{ .-xn¢ actuarial cost method used uy uic oym ms i
. ';determm the contributions from employers is the

“ i hrniastad hanafit mathad with antru ace narmal ongt
leJ\d\-ILUU Uwvilivail LIaviIiva yviwug \IIAI-IJ “5" AIVIIIIAGLE WUOL

-and open-end unfunded accrued liability. Under this

- method the actuarial present value of total benefits is

viaies als. Vaiae

. determined and a percemage is computed to allocate
“pension cost to each year as a level percentage of

salary.

B vSI‘he unfunded accrued liability liquidation periods at
- July 1, 1994 were as follows:

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS
29 years 1lyears 30years 25 years

The - significant actuarial assumptions used in
Anbavenisning Frndins nanrivame anta ava tha namen nn thana
uvict llllllllls 1uuu1115 lULlullClllClll.D alLe LIV D4dllie ad UIvov
used to calculate the pension benefit obligation, except

that far fundine nurnacec nact.ratiramant haneafit
wuial 107 IULGIHLE  PUiposos, pUsSsITuitinoiin Ui

increases are only anticipated for retired members and
members ehmhlp to retire under SCRS and PORS.

The actuarial value of assets used in this method is the
same as the net asset values presented in the financial
statements except for the exclusion of assets attributed
to the group life insurance fund (SCRS & PORS) and
the accidental death fund (PORS).

All participating employers are required to contribute
monthly (SCRS & PORS) or annually (GARS & JSRS)
to the Systems. All required employer contributions to
the Systems have been made in the normal course of
business.

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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Actuarially established contribution rates for the fiscal  Actuarially established contributions for the GARS for

year ended June 30, 1995 were as follows: the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 were as follows:
SCRS
STA':)E & Member normal ~ 10% of earnable compensation
SCHOOL  LOCAL FOF:S ISRS Employer normal $ 791,692
Member normat 6.00% 6.00% 6.50% 7.00% .
Unfunded accrued liability 426,713
Employer normal 3.93% 3.93%  759%  23.56% Group life insurance 6,345
Unfunded accrued Total $1.224.750
tiability 3.62% 271%  27%  16.74% L =
Accidental death 0.20%
Group life insurance 0.15% 0.15% 0.20% 0.81%
Total 7.70% 685%  10.70% 41.51%

Based on aggregate covered wages reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 actuarially required contribution
amounts (in thousands) were as follows:

Unfunded
Accrued Accidental Group
Normal Liability Death Life Total
SCRS
State and School $ 369,796 % 134,810 $ 5,584 § 510,190
Local 80,623 22,490 1,099 104,212
PORS ) 67,405 12,964 § 904 937 82,210
GARS % 1,172 427 6 1,605
JSRS v 3,042 1,645 80 4,767
Total $ 522,038 § 172,336 3 904 - $ 7,706 $ 702,984

The following chart shows actual employee and employer contributions (in thousands) for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1995.

% of % of
Employee Covered Employer Covered
Contributions Payroll Contributions ‘Payroll
SCRS
State and School $ 237,277 6.6% $ 283,843 7.8%
Local 51,720 6.4% 57,000 7.0%
PORS 34,762 7.3% 52,350 10.9%
GARS 603 15.8% 1,225 32.2%
JSRS 833 8.5% 4,080 41.5%
Total $ 325,195 $ 398,498
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In accordance with provisions of the 1994-1995 State
Appropriation Act an additional employer contribution
surcharge of 2.052% of covered payroll was added to
the contribution rate applicable to State & Public
School entities covered by the State Health Insurance
Plan. This assessment js for the purpose of providing
retiree health insurance coverage and is not a part of the
actuarially established contribution rates. Functioning
as a collecting agent, the SCRS and PORS collected (in
thousands) $74,763 and $4,525 respectively in retiree

VI: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

insurance surcharges ($2,132 of which was applicable
to the Optional Retirement Program) and remitted these
funds to the Division of Insurance Services

(administering agency for the State Health Insurance
Plan).

The ten year historical trend information presented
immediately following Note XIII provides information

about progress made in accumulating sufficient assets
to pay benefits when-due,

Property and equipment at June 30, 1995 consists of the following amounts:

INTERNAL
PENSION TRUST FUNDS SERVICE TOTAL
SCRS PORS GARS JSRS TOTAL FUND TOTAL 1994
8 Land 3 524,433 % 53,565 3 1,549 3 2453 § 582,000 $ 582,000 $ 582,000
Building 4,278,798 437,459 12,610 20,037 4,748,904 4,748,904 4,713,375
" ;- Office furniture
. and equipment $ 3,184,903 3,184,903 1,792,879
Total property and
squipment 4,803,231 491,024 14,159 22,49 5330904 3,184,903 8,515,807 7,088,254
. . Less accumulated
. depreciation 296,374 30,286 874 1,387 328,921 1,403,772 1,732,693 ,l ,282,305
. Nt property and
‘equipment $ 4,506,857 $ 460,738 % 13,285 § 21,103 § 5,001,983 $ 1,781,131 $§ 6,783,114 § 5805949

~-annual payments of approximately $115,000.

-VIL. PENSION PLAN:
-Substantially all employees of the Systems (Agency
‘Operations Internal Service Fund) are covered by the
-South Carolina Retirement System. The total covered
-payroll for the fiscal year was $4.1 million of total
‘pérsonal service expenditures of $4.4 million.

All actuarially required contributions due to the SCRS

-~ The Systems lease a portion of its' premises to another state agency under a 5 year operating lease with minimum

were paid in accordance with Plan provisions.
Employer retirement contributions of $310,004,
employee contributions of $246,360 and group life
contributions of $6,162 were paid in the current year.

In addition a retiree insurance surcharge of $84,255
was paid during the year ended June 30, 1995 for the
purpose of funding retiree health insurance costs.
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VIII. BUDGETED EXPENSES:

A formal annual budget is established and approved by the General Assembly for expenses of the Agency
Operations Internal Service Fund. Modifications to this budget must be approved by the State Budget & Control
Board. A comparison of actual to budgeted expenses (amounts in thousands) for this Fund follows:

Budget  Actual Variance
I. Administration
Personal services $ 4119 § 4004 $ 115
Other Operating 2,596 2,594 2
Newsletter ) 38 38
6,753 6,636 117
1. Self Insurance
Personal Service 154 154
Other Operating 172 171 |
326 325 1
III. Employee Benefits 1,120 1,034 86
IV. Non-Recurring 2,695 2,399 296
$ 10,894 § 10,394 § 500

Diffegences in expenses between the GAAP basis and budgetary basis of accounting result from the use of different
accountin[g"ﬁ"rinciples. These differences result in basis differences in expenses as follows:

o),
Total budgetary basis expenses $ 10,394
Basis differences (991)
Total GAAP basis expenses $ 9403

IX. POST RETIREMENT AND OTHER
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

The State of South Carolina provides certain health
care, dental and life insurance benefits to active and
certain retired state employees. All permanent full-time
employees are eligible to receive these benefits. These
benefits are provided through generated revenues for its
active employees and through the State Budget &
Control Board for all participating State retirees.
Expenses of approximately $311 thousand applicable to
these benefits were recorded in the year ended June 30,
1995. Information regarding the cost of insurance
benefits applicable to retirees is not available.

X. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS:

Several optional deferred compensation plans are
available to state employees and employers of political
subdivisions. Certain employees of the Systems have
elected to participate. The multiple-employer plans,
created under Internal Revenue Code Sections 457,

401(k) and 403(b) are accounted for as agency funds of
the State and included in the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report of the State of South Carolina.
Employees may withdraw the current value of their
contributions when they terminate State employment.
Employees may also withdraw contributions prior to
termination if they meet requirements specified by the
applicable plan.

Compensation deferred under the Section 401(k) and
403(b) plans is placed in trust for the contributing
employee. The State has no liability for losses under
the plans.  Under the 457 plan, all deferred
compensation plan amounts and earnings remain assets
of the employer (the State) subject to the claims of
employer's general creditors, one of whom is the
employee participant. It is unlikely, however, that the
State would ever use the plan assets to satisfy claims of
the State's general creditors. The portion of assets of
the Section 457 plan to which the State has access is
disclosed in its financial report.

—
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XI. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS.

The pension plans provide pension and other fringe
benefits to employees of all State agencies Revenues
attributed to these agencies are recorded 1n the financial
statements as employee and employer contributions and
constitute  approximately 41 8% of combined
contribution revenues The Systems receive a variety
of services from other agencies at no cost, mciuding
various administrative, payroll and accounting services
from the Office of the Comptroiler General, and
procurement and purchasmg services from other

Divisions of the Budget & Control Board In addition

previous payments, changes in number of members and
participants and estimates of trend changes Estimates
of habilities for mcurred claims are continually
reviewed and revised as changes m theses factors occur
and revisions are retlected 1n the current year’s mncome

Claim costs are actuarially calculated using the one-
year term cost method, the cost of coverage 1s the
present value of all benefit payments that wiil be made
on expected claims incurred during the year following
the valuation date Claim liabilities are equal to the
present value as of the valuation date of all future

mereen vemda bz oo mse Aandl o anea
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paymciw to UC ulauc 101 umauluuca auu acauis up LU

the Systems recerve custodlal mvestment and related  that date Actuarial assumptions include an interest rate

Man. af 0L ~nmnanndad annualle +h

A A Rataa nf antic ve A a
Vi O/9, \avulyvuuuvu auuuuuy auln

INGIVo U1 avllye ue

SRV 1y

services from the State
(per thousand) range from 3 at age 20 to 13 6 at age
64 Rateg of rhcahihhl (r\nr thousand) ranege from 1 35

. A misposimantaly €7 7 millian m amnlavar lifa and lano
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* term disability nsurance premiums were received from  for ages under 40 to 743 at age 64 Rates of
2- other agencies and mstitutions of the State during the  termmnation of disability are based on the Society of
; fiscal year Actuaries 1975 Reports and on the 1964
i‘i - Commussioners Disability Table The habilities amount
&

- Other sigmficant services and/or goods purchased from  (in thousands) at June 30, 1995 was $16,638

é: . other umts of government include medical evaluation

;' N services from the Vocational Rehabiltation  Changes in the balances of actuarally determined
FR Department, data processing services from the Budget  claims habilities during fiscal year 1994-1995 and
= - & Control Board Fmancial Data Systems, and 1993-1994 (amounts in thousands) were as follows

%? n communications services from the Division of

b . Information Resources Management 1994-1995 1993-1994
.

s - P " e - cma
PRI At June 30, 1995, accounts payable of approximately Beguning of Fiscal Year Lability 3 2,711 % 13,039
o $15 6 mll due to other State d ents and Current Year Claims

B million were due to other State departments an and Changes in Estimates 8,593 3,305
i s agencies and contributions recervable of approximately Claim Payments (4,726) (4,073)
i % $19 9 million were due from other State departments Balance at Fiscal Year-End $ 16,638 § 12,771
ot dnd agencies
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XII. RISK MANAGEMENT
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3 ine State has a poiicy of seif~nsuring the risks  On November 16, 1995 a lawswii was fiied agamsi ihe
;;ﬁ associated with The State Life and Long-Term Systems by a group of retired members
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381 These premms are charged to state agencies, public  Although no current estimate of the potential hability 15
L schools and other entities participating mn the State  available, the mmpact on the Systems could be
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FINANCIAL SECTION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION :
SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
REVENUE BY SOURCE
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Total % of Supplemental
Year Ended  Employee Employer Covered Investment Benefits Total
June 30, Contributions Contributions Payroll Income Revenue Revenue
1995 $288,997 $340,843 7.7% $926,003 $6,293 $1,562,136
1994 275,223 323,180 7.6% 841,332 6,848 1,446,583
1993 257,733 312,781 7.7% 830,466 7,331 1,408,311
1992 248,148 298,021 7.7% 749,808 7,728 1,303,705
1991 233,152 286,799 - 1% 678,984 8,111 1,207,046
1990 216,955 266,669 7.7% 626,723 8,523 1,118,870
1989 199,934 228,115 7.1% 544,156 9,269 981,474
1988 171,570 213,497 7.1% 484,487 7,888 877,442
1987 159,787 203,808 7.3% 474,080 8,207 845,882
1986 147,136 190,354 7.3% 483,114 10,024 830,628
POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
REVENUE BY SOURCE
(amounts expressed in thousands)
» Total % of Supplemental
Year Ended  Employee Employer Covered Investment Benefits Total
June 30, Contributions Contributions Payroll Income Revenue Revenue
1995 $34,762 $52,350 10.9% $97,561 $150 $184,823
1994 31,487 47,366 11.0% 90,088 158 169,599
1993 29,183 44,753 10.9% 85,230 167 159,333
1992 27,827 43,313 10.9% 77,018 186 148,344
1991 26,635 43,200 11.6% 66,745 191 136,771
1990 25,235 57,683 16.8% 63,030 205 146,153
1989 21,103 33,040 10.9% 50,966 250 105,359
1988 13,634 20,330 7.6% 46,512 179 80,655
1987 12,110 25,859 10.8% 41,175 184 79,328
1986 11,427 25,768 12.6% 41,108 288 78,591

South Carolina Retirement System
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued)£

Year Ended

June 30,

1995
1994

1993
1992

177 &

1991
1950
1989
1988
1987

1986

‘Y ear Ended

.- June 30,

1995
1994

1007
1770

1992
1991
1990

1989
1988
1987

100,
1700

GENERAL ASSEMBLY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
REVENUE BY SOURCE
expr

(amounts

ssed in thousands)

Total 0/ ~F

Employee Employer Covered Investment
Contributions Contributions Payroll Income
$603 $1,225 32.9% $2,490
339 1,163 48.9% 2,346
375 1,239 52.1% 2,234
390 1,147 48.2% 2,194
314 1,026 43.1% 2,007
331 1,177 50.9% 1,899
319 1,209 52.3% 1,729
297 1,414 50.0% 1,470
310 1,367 50.0% 1,442
324 1,334 48.8% 1,344

JUDGES AND SOLICITORS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

REVENUE BY SOURCE
(amounis expressed in thousands)

Total % of
Employee Employer Covered Investment
Contributions Contributions Payroll Income
$833 $4,080 41.5% $4,906
938 3,930 41.5% 4,576
1,023 3,910 41.5% 4,070
926 3,827 41.5% 3,673
590 3,418 40.9% 3,214
582 3,298 40.9% 2,951
567 3,202 40.9% 2,630
592 3,079 41.0% 2,185
549 3,018 41.0% 2,019
501 2,925 41.4% 2,624
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued):

SUMMARY OF EXPENSES BY TYPE

SUUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(amounts expressed in thousands)

. Administrs :
Year Ended Member Annuity Group Life Annuity Charges And Total
June 30, Refunds Payments " Claims Supplements Other Expenses _ Expenses
1995 $45,358 $524.311 $7.881 $6,293 $9,124 $592,967
$ 1994 39,291 467,185 7,241 , 6,848 5,711 526,276
1993 . 36,392 426,401 7,870 7,331 6,542 484,536
1992 35,681 383,943 7,595 7,728 6,018 440,965
1991 37,112 347,066 " 17,257 8,111 5,059 404,605
1990 35,121 315,230 7,591 8,523 4,909 371,374
1989 33,916 270,232 6,749 9,269 3,981 324,147
1988 32,493 216,264 6,586 7,888 3,843 267,074
1987 27,340 191,283 6,189 8,207 3,553 236,572
1986 28,359 166,632 6,139 10,024 3,527 214,681
] Ca
il
SUMMARY OF EXPENSES BY TYPE
POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(amounts expressed in thousands) '
Administrative 1
Year Ended Member Annuity Accidental Group Life Annuity Charges And Total
June 30, Refunds Payments Death Claims Supplements Other Expenses Expenses k
Benefits ?
1995 56,665 $53,653 $564 $969 $150 $979 $62,980 4
1994 5,577 45,145 575 789 158 594 . 52,838 4
1993 5,090 39,522 533 995 167 679 46,986 :
1992 4,718 34,917 429 895 186 611 41,756 ]
1991 4,439 30,281 413 703 191 500 36,527
1990 4,062 26,000 411 939 205 453 32,070
1989 3,602 20,281 352 770 250 353 25,608
1588 2,967 14,909 318 676 179 335 19,384
1987 2,326 12,922 289 864 184 302 16,887
1986 1,983 11,034 239 579 288 289 14,412
R
]
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued):

SUMMARY OF

PENSES BY TYPE

! E
GENERAL ASSEMBLY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
es

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Administrative
Year Ended Member  Annuity Group Life Charges And Total
June 30, Refunds Payments Claims  Other Expenses  Expenses
1995 $13 $2,905 $10 $25 $2,953
1994 29 1,969 2 16 2,016
1993 39 1,843 8 19 1,909
1992 56 1,684 5 18 1,763
1991 62 1,580 27 16 1,685
1990 17 1,485 26 16 1,544
1989 Y 1,294 27 i3 1,345
1988 28 1,170 : 12 1,210
1987 36 1,161 27 11 1,235
1986 18 1110 11 1,139

SUMMARY OF EXPENSES BY TYPE
JUDGES AND SOLICITORS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Administrative
ded Member  Annuity Group Life Charges And Total
June 30, Refunds Payments Claims  Other Expenses  Expenses

$2 $4.584 $1 $46 $4,633

3,884 92 28 4,004

3,790 3 3i 3,824

58 3,163 9 28 3,258

2,848 2 24 2,874

47 2,657 10 22 2,736

2,344 17 2,361

i,983 16 1,999

2 1,972 14 1,988

1,885 68 12 1,965

~ South Carolina Retirement Systems
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued):
Analysis of Funding Progress

(amounts expressed in millions)

Unfunded Pension

Net Assets Pension Unfunded Annual  Benefit Obligation

Year Available Benefit Percentage Pension Benefit Covered as a Percentage
Ended For Benefits Obligation Funded Obligation Payrelt  of Covered Payroll
SCRS ' 1994 $10,308.4 $13,7104 75.2% $3,402.0 $4,087.1 . 83.2%
1993 9,392.5 12,621.7 74.4% 3.229.2 3,990.0 80.9%
1992 84723 11,551.5 73.3% 3.679:2 37937 31 2%
1991 7,612.9 10,596.3 71.8% 29834 3,664 6 81.4%
1990 6,813.7 9,496.7 71.7% 2,683.0 3,484.6 77.0%
1989 6,068.6 8,646.1 70.2% 2,577.5 3,305.4 78.0%
1988 54137 7,377.8 73.4% 1,964.1 3,023.4 65.0%
1987 4,805.4 6,447.5 74.5% 1,642.1 2,796.5 58.7%
1986 4,202.4 5,747.5 . 73.i% 1,545.1 2,634.4 58.7%
PORS 1994 1,096.5 1,284.2 85.4% 187.7 429.3 43.7%
1993 981.5 1,132.4 86.7% 150.9 403.5 37.4%
1992 . 870.6 1,019.9 85.4% 1493 390.2 38.2%
1991 -765.6 - 920.6 83.2% 155.0 375.7 41.3%
1990 666.7 808.9 82.4% 1422 355.8 40.0%
1989 . 553.7 682.1 81.2% 128.4 304.8 42.1%
1088 475.0 540.6 87.9% 65.6 26%.2 24.4%
1987 414.7 4452 93.1% 30.5 © 2395 12.7%
‘1936 353.3 397.1 89.0% 43.8 204.4 21.4%

Y2

GARS 1994 28.6 45.8 62.5% 17.2 4.7 361.5%
1993 26.8 294 91.1% 2.6 3.0 88.4%
1992 248 28.6 86.9% 3.8 3.0 126.7%
1991 22.9 26.9 85.0% 4.0 2.8 ' 145.6%
1990 21.2 26.2 81.0% 5.0 2.8 . 178.9%
1989 19.3 239 80.9% 4.6 2.7 167.0%
1988 17.4 22.0 79.2% 4.6 2.8 162.0%
1987 15.5 222 69.8% 6.7 2.7 246.2%
1986 13.6 21.1 64.5% 1.5 2.7 274.0%
JSRS 1994 52.0 71.8 72.4% 19.8 5.0 220.0%
1983 46.6 67.2 69.3% 20.6 8.8 234.0%
1992 41.4 61.1 67.8% 19.7 8.9 221.0%
1991 36.3 ) 56.9 63.8% 20.6 83 248.0%
1990 319 54.3 58.7% 22.4 8.0 280.0%
1989 27.8 48.9 56.9% 21.1 7.6 278.0%
1988 238 52.6 45.2% 28.8 7.4 389.2%
1987 19.9 51.6 38.6% i 31.7 7.4 428.4%
1986 16.3 48.9 33.3% 32.6 7.1 459.2%

* Valuations were as of June 30th throu

The comparability of trend information is affected by changes in actuarial assumptions, benefit provisions, actuarial funding methods,
accounting policies, and other changes. Those changes usually affect trends in qoptributionrequiminmts‘: angi_ in ratios that use the pension
benefit obligation as a factor. S EON T

Looking at the pension benefit obligation, or the unfunded portion of the pension benefit obligation, in isolation can be mislcading,

bt — et T R )

(n Expressing net assets available for benefits as a percentage of the pension benefit obligation' provides one indication of the cxtent to
which the Systems are funded. Analysis of this percentage over time indicates whether the Systems are becoming financially stronger
or weaker. Generally, the greater this percentage, the stronger the System,. . . . - S .

{2) Expressing the pension benefit obligation as a percentage of the annual covered payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of

inflation and aids analysis of funding progress. Generally, the smaller the unfunded percentage. the stronger the System,

The above information is presented only for years available. Additional years will be added as available, - ; .

~South Carolina Retirement Systers .
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- SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

NI n ne
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 1995
With comparative totals for June 30, 1994

7

b g

s
»
v

PRI
A
!

SR ARSI OIS SRR BB 1

i

<
-

4

X v
w4

H

:
e Paos

PrYES e
0 » “
v_‘ 3y ﬁ:!ﬁ‘u‘fj."yg‘\‘ A Yy

:E Tt A
ully, sy
Lol o)

3

‘?’;1‘
Y 'r'\

Wil bt ot
TR
Ay

u
¥ AR A

)
.{H -

<

memmmwxmmmmmmm

o ¥
7

mehieasishy

eTH

A= R i AT AT st Wbl A e o BRI K g 3 L b B ST et B ey el 9 A R0 [ n
G -

oyt g W
2,

N - g % ﬁ»
am;:‘uwdmm
N ¢ wler

N
eebab G OB WY

tii \i I
gt
,{iﬁr b

1 ¢

i

&

. S, Pan A 0 B ¢

it

e

(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

'+,
Current assels

Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued interest recetvable

Total current assets

Long-term assets
Investments, at amortized cost
United States Government Agencies
and government-msured securities
(market value - $13,090 1n 1995, $11,474 1n 1994)
Corporate bonds
{market value - $4,963 in 1995, $3,033 in 1994)
Financial and other
(market value - $3,384 in 1995, $3,474 in 1994)

Total investments

Property and equipment,

Totat assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Current liabilities
Accounts payable - unsettled investment purchases
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Compensated absences payable
Incurred hut unpaid claims

Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Incurred but unpaid claims

Total habilities

Pund equity
Contributed capital - governmental
Patormad ooee s

Retained earnings {deficit)

Total fund equity
Total ISP

liabilities and fund equity

See indenendent

_______ pendent auditor

STATE
LIFE & LTD AGENCY TOTAL
PLAN OPERATIONS TOTAL 1994

$ 4,007 % 980 § 4987 $ 4,069

255 255 212

4,262 980 5,242 4,281

12,791 12,791 11,293

4,647 4,647 3,190

3,427 3,427 3,656

20,865 20,865 18,139

1,781 1,781 721

$ 25,127 § 2,761 § 27,888 $ 23,141

$ 3,000 $ 3,000 $ 2,000

$ 916 916 694

583 583 542

3,586 3,586 2,908

6,586 1,499 8,085 6,144

13,083 13,083 10,017

19,669 1,499 21,168 16,161

8 8 8

5458 1,254 6,712 6,972

5,458 1,262 6,720 6,980

3 25,127 § 2,761 % 27,888 § 23,141

South Carolina Refirement Systems
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SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

IN RETAINED EARN INGS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1995

With-comparative totals for the year ended Jun e 30, 1994

{(umounts expressed in thousands)

STATE
LIFE & LTD AGENCY TOTAL
PLAN OPERATIONS TOTAL 1994
Operating revenues:
Premium revenue:
Group life insurance $ 1,280 $ 1,280 §$ 1,267
Long term disability 4,663 4,663 4,617
Operating charge to Pension Trust Funds $ 10,056 10,056 6,232
Investment income 1,475 1,475 1,010
Other income . 262 262 231
Total operating revenues 7,418 . 10,318 17,736 13,357
Sophe - .
Opcrat'iag;‘expcnscs:
Claims:
Group life insurance 1,247 1,247 1,182
Long term disability 7,346 7,346 2,123
Personal services 4,471 4,471 3,990
Contractual services 2,900 2,900 2,196
Supplies 429 429 362
Fixed charges 34 34 11
Fringe benefits 1,045 1,045 985
Travel and other 116 116 89
Depreciation 408 408 259
Total operating expenses 8,593 9,403 17,996 11,197
Operating income (loss) before operating transfers (1,175) 915 (260) 2,160
Operating transfers in (out) (355) 355
Net income (loss) (1,530) 1,270 (260) 2,160
Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning of year 6,988 (16) 6,972 4,812
Retained eamnings (deficit) at end of year $ 5458 $ 1,254 $ 6,712 § 6,972

See independent auditors' report.

T mer o nlel
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o SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

INTERNAL SERVIC E FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1995

MIEREN BUANRTRUN? SULNXY JUy A

With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 1994

rena Aol
{amounts expressed in thousands)

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

STATE
LIFE & LTD AGENCY TOTAL
! PLAN OPERATIONS TOTAL 1994
Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (1,175) § 915 § (260) $ 2,160
’ Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Investment income classified as operating income (1,475) {1,475) {1,010)
Depreciation expense 408 408 259
Loss on disposal of equipment 5 5
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued expenses - 222 222 148
Increase in compensated absences payable 41 41 49
Increase (decrease) in incurred but unpaid claims 3,744 3,744 (720)
Total adjustments 2,269 676 2,945 (1,274)
: Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,094 1,591 2,685 886
2 Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
z Operating transfers in (out) to other funds (355) 353
g Net cash provided by noneapital financing activities ' (355) 355
Cash flows from capital and related
* financing activities:
v Purchase of fixed assets . (1,473) (1,473) (1303
-, Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (1,473) {1,473) (130)
- Cash flows from investing activities:
% .~ “Proceeds from sale of investments 20,229 20,229 26,299
£ '!’urchase of investments (21,955) (21,955) (29,679)
g .. Interest received ) 1,432 _ 1,432 887
g“ -~ Neét cash (used in) investing activities (294) (294) (2,493)
Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . 445 473 918 (1,737)
'_ . Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,562 507 4,069 5,806
- Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 4,007 $ 980 $ 4,987 § 4,069

- See independent auditors' report.

e ]
South Carolina Retirement Systems

39




FINANCIAL SECTION

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
JUNE 30, 1995
| With comparative totals for June 30, 1994
. (amounts expressed in thousands)

TOTAL

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8943814 § 99470 § 2439 § 2076 $ 998,799 § 367932
Receivables: . .
Contributions 90,409 18,189 52 78 108,728 98514
Accrued interest 154,105 12,787 496 876 173,264 163,119
o investments, at amortized cost:
United States Government securities
(market value - $3,520,964 in 1995; $3,150,877 in 1994} 2,516,300 . 210,665 1,520 8,980 2,743,465 2,617,708
United States Government agencies and
govemment-insured securities
(market value - $3,000,959 in 1995; $2,648,997 in 1994) 2,403,480 289,648 6,813 20,799 2,720,740 2,533,879
Corporate bonds (market value - $3,639,079 in 1995; . .
$3.045,464 in 1994) 2,960,028 375,074 . B178 16,200 1,359,478 2,998,814
Finahcial rnd’pther (market valye -
52,773.5§3 in 1995; $3,076,408 in 1994) 2,473,511 243,433 4,379 10,348 2,731,671 3,184,374
Tnm‘hfieslments 10,353,319 1,118,820 26,888 56,327 11,555,354 11,334,775
Deferred yield adjustment for security exchanges (30,313) (185) 100 {152) {30,550) (29,897)
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 4,507 461 13 21 5,002 5,085
Total assets $11466841 § 1254542 § 29988 § 59,226 § 12,810,597 $ 11,939,528
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable - unsettled investment purchases $ 108069 § 17497 $ 2000 § 127566 § 351,463
Due to State Health Insurance Plan 14,714 774 15,488 18,107
Accrued expenses 2,176 232§ ! 2,409 2,387
Total liabilities 124,959 18,503 1 2,000 145,463 371,957
Fund balances:
Employee fund ' 3,085,531 251255 6,160 9,566 3,352,512 3,079,687
Employer fund 3,187,499 965,263 23,827 47,660 9,224,249 8,405,891
Group life insurance fund : 68,852 10,191 79,043 73,727
Accidental death fund 9,330 9,330 8,266
Total fund balances 11,341,882 1,236,039 29,987 57,226 12,665,134 11,567,571
Total liabilities and fund balances § 11466841 § 1254542 % 29988 § 59,226 § 12,810,597 § 11,939,528
Sec independent auditors' report. E

South Carolina Retirement Systems - A.:

St




FINANCIAL SECTION

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1995
With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 1994
(amounts expressed in thousands)
TOTAL
SCRS PORS * GARS JSRS TOTAL 1994
Operating revenues: '

" Empioyee contributions § 288997 § 34,762 % 603 % 833 § 325,195 $§ 307,987
Employer contributions 340,343 52,350 1,225 4,080 398,498 376,139
Supplemental retirement benefits

funded by the State 6,293 150 6,443 7,006
_Investment income 926,003 97,561 2,490 4,906 1,030,960 938,342
Total operating revenues 1,562,136 184,823 4,318 9,819 1,761,096 1,629,474
Operating expenses:
Refunds of contributions to members 45,358 6,665 13 2 52,038 44,897
Regular retirement benefits 524,311 53,653 2,905 4,584 585,453 518,183
Supplemental retirement benefits 6,293 150 6,443 7,006
Group life insurance claims 7,881 969 10 ! 8,861 8,124
Accidental death benefits 564 564 575
Depreciation 106 11 1 118 117
Administrative charges 9,018 968 25 45 10,056 6,232
Total operating expenses 592,967 62,980 2,953 4,633 663,533 585,134
Net income 969,169 121,843 1,365 5,186 1,097,563 1,044,340
Fund batances at beginning of year 10,372,713 1,114,196 28,622 52,040 11,567,571 10,523,231
:ﬂmd balances at end of year $ 11,341,882 § 1,236,039 § 29,987 § 57,226 $ 12,665,134 § 11,567,571

. See independent auditors' report.
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T OF
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

T T
SCRS PENSION TRUST FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1995
Witih comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 1994
(amounts expressed in thousands)

GROUP LIFE

EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER INSURANCE TOTAL
FUND FUND FUND TOTAL 1994
Operating revenues:
Employee contributions:
State department employees $ 115,032 $ 115032 § 111,810
Public school employees 122,245 122,245 115,107
Other political subdivision employees 51,720 51,720 48,306
Employer contributions:
State department employers $ 137,842 $ 2,806 140,648 134,399
Public school employers 140,417 2,778 143,195 135,947
Other political subdivision employers 55,901 1,099 57,000 52,834
Suppiementai retirement benefits funded by the State 6,293 6,293 6,848
{nvestment income 920,280 - 5,723 926,003 841,332
Total gpgga[!no revenues 288,997 ) 1260.733 ) 12,406 1,562,136 1,446,583
Operating expenses:
Refunds of contributions to members 45,358 45,358 39,291
Regular retirement benefits 524,311 524311 467,185
Supplemental retirement benefits 6,253 6,293 6,848
Group life insurance claims 7,881 7,881 7,241
Depreciation 106 106 106
Administrative charges 9,018 9,018 5,605
Total operating expenses 45,358 539,728 7,881 592,967 526,276
Interfund transfers according to statutory requirements:
Contributions by members at retirement (157,003) 157,003
Interest credited to members' accounts 160,417 (160,417)
Net interfund transfers 3,414 ) (3,4“4\
Net income 247,053 717.591 4,525 969,169 920,307
Fund balances at beginning of year 2,838,478 7,469,908 64,327 10,372,713 9,452,406
Fund balances at end of year $ 3085531 $ 8187499 $ 68,852 $ 11,341,882 $ 10,372,713

See independent auditors' report.

]
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PORS PENSION TRUST F UND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1995

With comparative totais for the Yyear ended June 30, 1994
(amounts expressed in thousands)

GROUPLIFE ACCIDENTAL

EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER INSURANCE DEATH TOTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTAL 1994
Operating revenues:
Employee contributions: }
State department employees $ 15,986 $ 1598 % 14,848
Other political subdivision empioyees 18,776 18,776 16,639
Employer contributions:
State department employers $ 23,248 § 431 3 441 24,130 22,404
Other political subdivision employers 27,261 496 463 28,220 25,462
Supplemental retirement benefits funded by
" the State : 150 150 158
Investment income 96,014 823 724 97,561 90,088
- Total operating revenues 34762 146673 1,760 1,028 184,823 169,599
" Operating experises:
Refunds of contributions to members 6,665 6,665 5,577
Reguiar retirement benefits 53,653 53,653 45,145
Supplemental retirement benefits 150 150 158
Group life insurance claims 969 . 969 789
Accidentat death benefits 564 564 575
. - Depreciation 11 11 10
" Administrative charges 968 968 584
Total operating expenses 6,665 54,782 969 564 62,980 52,838
Interfund transfers according to
statutory requirements;
Contributions by members at retirement (16,210) 16,210
interest credited to members' accounts 12,760 (12,760)
- Net interfund transfers (3,450) 3,450 :
Net income 24,647 95,341 791 1,064 121,843 116,761
und balances at beginning of year 226,608 869,922 9,400 8,266 1,114,196 997,435
“Furd balances at end of year $ 251285 § 965,263 $ 10,191 § 9330 8§ 1236039 $ 1114195

'S'ee}independent auditors' report.

M
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, £
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GARS PENSION TRUST FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1995
With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 1994
(amounts expressed in thousands)

4
=
53|
Z
2
=
w

EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER TOTAL
FUND FUND TOTAL 1994
Operating revenues:
Employee contributions
State Departments $ 603 $ 603 § 339
Employer contributions
State Departments 3 1,225 1,225 1,163
Investment income 2,490 2,490 2,346
Total operating revenues 603 3,715 4,318 3,848
perating expenses
Refunds of contributions to members 13 13 29
Retirement DéI‘l&uLb 2,905 2,905 1,969
Group life insurance claims 10 10 2
Administrative charges 25 B 25 16
Total operating expenses 13 2,940 2,953 2,016
Interfund transfers according to
statutory requirements: :
Contributions by members at retirement 371) 371
Interest credited to members' accounts 332 - (332)
Net interfund transfers (39) 39
Net income 551 814 1,365 1,832
Fund balanees at beginning of year 5,609 23,013 28,622 26,790
Fund balances at end of year $ 6,160 $ 23,827 § 29987 § 28,622
See independent auditors’ report.
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SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

P COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
s : AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

P JSRS PENSION TRUST FUND

‘ YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1995

With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 1994

(amounts expressed in thousands)

. See independent auditors' report.

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER TOTAL
FUND - FUND TOTAL 1994
Operating revernues:
Employee contributions
State Departments $ 833 $ 833 § - 938
Employer contributions
State Departments $ 4,080 4,080 3,930
% Investment income 4,906 4,906 4,576
Total operating revenues 833 8,986 9.819 ’ 9.444
* Operating expenses:
Refunds of contributions to members 2 2
z Retirement benefits 4,584 4,584 3,884
_ Group life insurance claims i i 92
z Depreciation 1 1 I
Administrative charges 45 45 27
Total operating expenses 2 4,631 4,633 4,004
- Interfund transfers according to
 statutory requirements:
- Contributions by members at retirement (770) 770
. -Interest credited to members' accounts 513 ) (513)
’ Net interfund iransfers {257) 257
B Net income 574 4,612 5,186 5,440
* Fund balances at beginning of year / 8,992 43,048 52,040 46,600
* Fund balances at end of year $ 9,566 $ 47,660 $ 57,226 $ 52,040
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ACTUARIAL SECTION

U
CONSULTANTS

200 Galleria Parkway, N.W, Suite 1200
Atlanta, Georgia 30339-5945

November 10, 1

=3
\C
L&

State Budget and Control Board
South Carolina Retirement Systems
Columbia, South Carolina 29211

Gentlemen:

The laws governing the operation of the various Retirement Systems provide that actuarial valuations of
the assets and liabilities of the Systems shall be made annually for the South Carolina Retirement System
and the Police Officers Retirement System and no less frequently than biennially for the General
Assembly Retirement System and the Judges and Solicitors Retirement System. We have submitted the
results of the actuarial valuations prepared as of July 1, 1994. In preparing the valuations the actuary
relied on data provided by the Systems. While not venfvmg the data at source, the actuarv nerformed

wiily 1HuUL 2257 e B et 4L 2URAILL, VAL Siiat PR aViiiie

tests for consistency and reasonablhty

The financing objective of the Systems is that contribution rates will remain relatively level over time as

a percentage of nnygg]l_ Contribution rates are developed using the entry age normal cost method. Book

value of plan assets is used for actuarial valuation purposes. Gains and losses are reflected in the

ithestinma aidlelc o 2N ..
unfunded accrued liabilities that are being amortized by regular annual contributions within a 30-year

period, assuming 4% annual payroll growth for the South Carolina Retirement System, the Police Officers

Ratiramant Cuctam nnd tha Tanaecal Accanmb Dadicaceamé Cocnbncee e d

Ketirement Systeém and the Generai naacmun_y ACUTEHICHY VYSICin and 62 % annual payrou grcwm for
the Judges and Solicitors Retirement System The assumpnons recommended by the actuary are in the
aggregate reasanamy related to the cxpcncm.c under the oyswms and to reasonable expectations of
anticipated experience under the systems. The following schedules present summaries of the principal
resuits of the valuations prepared as of July 1, 1994 and the actuarial methods and assumptions used to
prepare the valuations.

In our opinion the Systems are operating on an actuarially sound basis. Assuming that contributions to
the Systems are made by the employers from year to year in the future at the rates recommended on the
basis of the successive actuarial valuations, the continued sufficiency of the retirement funds to provide
the benefits called for under the Systems may be safely anticipated.

Sincerely,

S R Ay

gji Donald M. Overholser
.| Consulting Actuary

Buck Consultants, Inc.
404 | 955-2488 Fax 404| 933 8336




ACTUARIAL SECTION

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
RESULTS OF THE VALUATION AS OF JULY 1 , 1994

S S X &7

(All dollar amounts are in thousands)
(1)  Actuarial liabilities

Present value of prospective benefits payable in respect of:

(a) Present retired members and beneficiaries $ 5,561,280
(b) Present active and inactive members 11,655,353
(¢) Total actuarial liabilities $ 17,216,633
(2)  Assets of the System 10,308,386
(3)  Present value of future contributions = (O(©)-(2) $ 6,908,247
(4)  Present valqe of future contributions by members 2,682,870

(5)  Present value of future contributions by employers = (3} --(4)
$ 4225377

(6)  Present value of future normal contributions by employers
$ 1,757,280
(7)  Present value of unfunded accrued liability contributions -
by employers = (5) - (6) $ 2468097

(8) Unfunded accrued liability rates

(a) State 3.62%

{b) Others 2.77%

(9)  Unfunded accrued liability liquidation period 29 years
(1) *  Group life insurance benefit contribution rate 15%

T
South Carolina Retirement Systems
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ACTUARIAL SECTION

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTE
RESULTS OF THE VALUATION AS OF JULY

Actuarial liabilities

Present value of prospective benefits payable in respect of:
(a) Present retired members and beneficiaries

(b) Present active and inactive members

(c) Total actuarial liabilities

Assets of the System

Present value of future contributions = (1) (c) - (2)
Present value o
Present value of future contributions by employers = (3) - (4)

Present value of future normal contributions by employers

Present value of unfunded accrued liability contributions
by employers = (5) - (6)

Unfunded accrued liability rates:

(a) Class One Service
(b) Class Two Service

Unfunded accrued liability liquidation period

Group life insurance benefit contribution rate

South Carolina Retirement Systems

50

EM
1, 1994

547,189,312

1,392,535,082

1,939,728,394

1,096,530,000

843,198,394

A0 677 58
STV E P yduo

502,520,811

397,960,774

$104,560,037

3.21%
2.71%

11 years

20%
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ACTUARIAL SECTION

| GENERAL ASSEMBLY RETIREMENT SY.STEM
RESULTS OF THE VALUATION AS OF JULY 1, 1994
i :
(1) Actuarial Liabilities
|
|
| Present value of prospective benefits payable in respect of:
(a) Present beneficiaries and contingent beneficiaries $ 26,785,997
(b) Present active, inactive and special members 30,562,366
(c) Total actuarial liabilities $ 57,348,363
(2)  Assets of the System 28,622,000
: 3) Present value of future contributions = (1) (¢) - (2) $ 28,726,363
“ Present value of future contributions by members 3,619,890
;) Present value of future contributions by the State = 3)-@ $ 25,106,473
: 6) Present value of 1 per cent of future compensation $ 361,989
|
i
| @) Present value of future normal contributions by the State
at 16.38% = (6) x 16.38 $ 5,929,380
®) Present value of unfunded accrued liability contributions by ~ °
the State = (5) - (7) $ 19,177,093
® Unfunded accrued liability liquidation period 30 years
(10) Annual cost of lump sum death benefit contributions by the State $ 10,468

outh Cdrolma Retzrement Systems
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ACTUARIAL SECTION

—
—

JUDGES AND SOLICITORS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
RESULTS OF THE VALUATION AS OF JULY 1, 1994

(H Actuarial liabilities

Present value of prospective benefits payable in respect of:

(a) Present beneficiaries and contingent beneficaries $ 43,752,227

(b) Present active members 69,776,779

] (c) Total actuarial liabilities $ 113,529,006
2) Assets of the System 52,040,000

(3) Present value of future contributions = (1) (c) - (2) $ 61,489,006

4 Present value of future contributions by members 6,829,174

(5) Present value of future contributions by the State = (3) - (4) $ 54,659,832
6) Present value of 1 per cent of future compensation $ 975,597
N Present value of future normal contributions by the State $ 23,377,496
{8 Present value of unfunded accrued liability contributions

by the State = (§) - (7) $ 31,282,336
(©))] Unfunded accrued liability liquidation period 25 years

—_
South Carolina Retirement Systems
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ACTUARIAL SECTION

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
OUTLINE OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS
INTEREST RATE: 8 % per annum, compounded annually.
SEPARATIONS FROM SERVICE AND SALARY INCREASES: Representative values
of the assumed annual rates of separation and an al rates of salary increase are as follows
Annual Rates of
Service Service
Age Withdrawal Death Disability =~ Retirement* ‘Withdrawal Death Disability Retirement*
Men Teachers Women Teachers
20 1L11 % 04 % O % 13.79 % 03 % 02 %
25 9.97 .05 .01 12.83 .03 .03
7.91 08 .02 9.12 .04 .04
6.06 2 .03 5.61 .06 .04
4.67 18 .06 ! 3.43 .08 07
3.67 ‘ .25 B | 233 A3 iz
2.83 35 20 500 % 1.74 20 20 500 %
2.03 .50 34 5.00 1.18 29 .35 5.00
.70 .59 10.00 45 .61 15.00
.92 .94 20.00 .66 .82 20.00
Service
Withdrawal ) Death Disability Retirement* * Salary Increase
Employees ’ Teachers and Employees
Men Women ‘
13.94 % 12.55 % 07 % 04 % 11.81 %
12.46 [1.21 .09 .04 10.90
9.78 8.80 .11 .06 9.50
7.38 6.64 .14 .08 7.81
5.57 5.01 18 10 : 7.00
427 324 28 A5 6.60
318 2.86 46 25 500 % 6.30
2.14 - 1.93 5 40 5.00 6.10
1.08 61 10.00 5.90
1.36 .85 20.00 5.80

in year when first eligible for unreduced early retirement.

TINHYI T ¥ TIFIIT Vs Te R 4 ae m e

DLATH AFTER RETIREMENT: 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Tables rated back one year, for

Serv1ce retirement and dependent beneficiaries. A special mortality table is used for disability
i‘curements

LC’ADING OR CONTINGENCY RESERVES: None

e ———
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ACTUARIAL SECTION

VALUATION METHOD: Projected benefit with level percentage entry age normal cost and
en-end unfunded accrued liability. Gains and losses are reflected in the period remaining to liquidate

open-&iid UNnIunGea accruce &

the unfunded accrued liability. Lump sum death benefits are provided on a one-year term cost basis.

VALUATION BASIS: The valuation was made on the basis of active service tables, mortality
tables, and salary increase assumptions adopted on October 24, 1989. The interest rate was adopted on

July 18, 1989.
ASSET VALUATION METHOD: Amortized cost.

COST-OF-LIVING INCREASES: For funding purposes, 4% per year for current retirees and
active members eligible to retire; for GASB, 4% per year after assumed retirement for ail members.

e ————————————
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ACTUARIAL SECTION

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREN VIENT

VCTILRA
NLIANC M WL LAV UINU N L LINSAVRAIN g 8 th

Q
(%] I
OUTLINE OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS
INTEREST RATE: 8% per annum, compounded annually.

SEPARATION FROM SERVICE AND SALARY INCREASES: Representative values of
the adopted annual rates of separation and annual rates of salary increases are as follows:

Annual Rate of

Service Salary
Age Withdrawal Death Disability Retirement* Increases
20 345 % 10 % 14 % 12.29 %
25 3.21 13 16 11.39
30 2.28 16 20 10.01
35 1.40 20 26 8.29
40 .86 27 34 7.50
45 58 40 .50 7.10
50 44 57 .84 5.00 % 6.80
55 .88 6.50 6.60
60 1.42 9.90 6.40
64 2.03 15.98 6.30

* An additional 20% are assumed to retire when first eligible for unreduced service retirement.

DEATHS AFTER RETIREMENT: 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Tables for service retirement
and dependent beneficiaries set forward two years. A special mortality table is used for disability
retirements.

VALUATION METHOD: Projected benefit method with level percentage entry age normal cost

i in tha ad
and open-end unfunded accrued liability. Gains and losses are reflected in the period remaining to

'hqundate the unfunded accrued liability. Lump sum death benefits are provided on a one-year term cost

ATION BASIS: The valuation was made on the basis of active service tabies, mortality
tables, and salary increase assumptions adopted on October 24, 1989. The interest rate was adopted on

Juiy 18, 1989,

"ASSET VALUATION METHOD: Amortized cost.




GENERAL ASSEMBLY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
OUTLINE OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS

INTEREST RATE: 8% per annum, compounded annually.

SEPA RAT ION F RO M SERVICE: Representative values of the adopted annual rates of

Fallae,

8
[¢]
f=%]
7
—
=
)
=
U

Annual Rate of

Death Disability Service
Age Mate Female Male Female Retirement
20 04 % 03 % 01 % 02 %
25 05 .03 01 03
30 08 04 02 04
35 12 .06 03 04
40 18 .08 06 07
45 25 13 11 12
50 35 20 20 20
55 .50 29 34 35
60 100%

SALARY INCREASES: Salaries are assumed to increase at an annual rate of 4 per cent.

MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS: Member contributions are assumed to increase at an annual rate
of 5.0 per cent.

DEATHS AFTER RETIREMENT: 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Tables, rated back one year
for service retirement and dependent beneficiaries. A special mortality table is used for disability
retirements. '

SPOUSES: 100% of active and special members were assumed married with the wife four years
younger.

LOADING OR CONTINGENCY RESERVES: None

VALUATION BASIS: The valuation was made on the basis of active sen vice tables, "l-lﬁﬁah‘l.-y'
tables, and salary increase assumptions adopted on October 24, 1989. The interest rate was adopted on
July 18, 1989

Y A AY W e wrrmirr

VALUATION METHOD: Projected benefit method with entry age normal cost and open-end
unfunded accrued liability. Gains and losses are reflected in the unfunded accrued liability. Lump sum
death benefits are provided on a one-year term cost basis.

ASSET VALUATION METHOD: Amortized Cost.

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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—_ACTUARIAL SECTION

UDGES AND SOLICITORS RET
OUTLINE OF ACTUARIAL A

nmY
SSUMPTIO

IREMENT-SYSTEM
NS AND METHODS

VALUATION INTEREST RATE: §% per annum, compounded annually.

SEPARATIONS FROM ACTI
a

Annual Rate of

VE SERVICE: Representative values of the assumed annual

Age Disability Male
25 05 % .09
30 06 A1
35 07 14
40 10 18
45 1 28
50 25 46
55 44 75
60 82 1.44
65 2.10 3.30
69 5.20 4.50

NORMAL RETIREME

to retire at the age at which they
SALARY INCREASE RATE: 6112% per annum, co

"DEATHS AFTER RETIREMENT: 1971 Group A

. for service retirement and
. Tetirements.

% 05 %

.83
1.28

NT AGE: Judges are assumed to retire at age 68. Solicitors are assumed

nnn

are first eligible for a service retirement benefit,

mnounded annua”y‘

L rhhar Y4 ¥ N Saand

oup Annuity Mortality Tables, rated back one year,
dependent beneficiaries. A special mortality table is used for disability

- SPOUSES: 95% of active members were assumed married with the s ouse four years younger.
p y young

- LOADING OR CONTINGENCY RESERVES: None.

ot = o

accrued liability,

4Lt

TION METHOD: Projected bene

fit method with entry age normal cost and open-end

1

v Gains and losses are reflected in the unfunded accrued liability. Lump sum
- death benefits are provided on a one-year term cost basis,

- ASSET VALUATION METHOD: Amortized Cost,

N S ———
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ACTUARIAL SECTION

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
THE NUMBER AND EARNABLE COMPENSATION OF ACTIVE MEMBERS
AS OF JULY 1, 1994

GROUP MEN WOMEN . TOTAL
EMPLOYEES
Number 43,057 58,402 101,459
Earnable Compensation (1,000s) $ 1,147,209 $ 1,248,309 $ 2,395,518
TEACHERS
Number . 13,563 58,951 72,514
Earnable Compensation (1,000's) $ 374,026 $ 1,317,534 3 1,691,560
TOTAL
Number 56,620 117,353 173,973
Earnable Compensation (1,000's) $ 1,521,235 § 2,565,843 § 4,087,078

Note: There are in addition 104,335 inactive members. The results of the valuation were adjusted to
take these members into account.

-

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
THE, NUMBER AND EARNABLE COMPENSATION OF ACTIVE MEMBERS
AS OF JULY 1, 1994

P

ANNUAL
GROUP NUMBER COMPENSATION
Men - 15,042 $ 355,291,265
Women 3,623 73,972,417
Total 18,665 $ 429,263,682

Note: There are in addition 5,808 members not on the payroll as of July 1, 1994 but included in the
individual accounts maintained by the System. The results of the valuation were adjusted to take
these members into account.

#
South Carolina Retirement Systems
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ACTUARIAL SECTION
GENERAL ASSEMBLY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
THE NUMBER AND EARNABLE COMPENSATION OF ACTIVE MEMBERS
ASOF JULY 1, 1994
i ANNUAL
GROUP NUMBER COMPENSATION
Men 186 $ 4,166,400
Women ‘ 26 582,400
Total 212 ' $ 4,748,800

Note: There are in addition 97 inactive membe

rs with contributions still in the System. The results of
the vaulation were adjusted to take these members into account.

JUDGES AND SOLICITORS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
THE NUMBER AND ANNUAL COMPENSATION OF ACTIVE MEMRER

<
ASOFJULY1, 1994
ANNUAL
GROUP NUMBER COMPENSATION
Men i01 $ 8,381,704
Women 8 658,335
Total 109 $ 9,040,039

Note: There are 10 inactive members with contributions still in the System. The results of the
valuation were adjusted to take these members into account.

—
South Carolina Retirement Systems
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ACTUARIAL SECTION

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

= = i mTEL A RTRTET 4 TATVIITMITMIRAATIRIN AT T NIL7 A AMATQ MNTY

THE NUMBER AND ANNUAL RETIREMENT ALLUWANCEDS UF
RETIRED MEMBERS AND BENEFICIARIES ON THE ROLL

; AS OF JULY 1, 1994
‘ ANNUAL
RETIREMENT
ALLOWANCES
GROUP NUMBER {1.000's)

Service Retirements

Employees:
‘ Men 10,120 $ 124,010
i Women 8,777 71,129
|
\
‘ Teachers:
Men 4,045 58,662
Women 16,861 167,226
Total 39,803 $ 421,027
Disability Retirements
Emnlavees:
Employees:
Men 1,734 $ 13,312
Women 1,550 10,960
Teachers
en 497 4,736
Women 1,593 12,524
Total 5,374 $ 41,532
Beneficiaries of Deceased Retired Members
and Active Members
Men 545 $ 3,112
Women 3,600 24, 154
Total 4,145 $ 27,266
Grand Total 49,322 $ 489,825

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

THE NUMBER AND ANNUAL RETIREMENT ALLOWANCES OF
RETIRED MEMBERS AND BENEF ICIARIES -

AS OF JULY 1, 1994
ANNUAL
RETIREMENT
GROUP NUMBER ALLOWANCES
Service and Early Retiremenis: '
Men 2,788 $ 34,328,030
Women 186 1,146,451
Total _ 2,974 $ 35,474,481
Disability Retirements:
Men 554 $ 6,419,292
Women ' 52 401,967
Total , 606 . $ 6,821,259
Beneficiaries of Deceased Members:
Men 17 3 77,327
Women 536 3,800,520
Total 553 $ 3,877,847
Grand Total 4,133 5 46,173,587

m_-*
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_ACTUARIAL SECTION.

GENERAL ASSEMBLY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
THE NUMBER AND ANNUAL RETIREMENT ALLOWANCES OF
BENEFICIARIES AND CONTINGENT BENEFICIARIES
AS OF JULY 1, 1994

ANNUAL
RETIREMENT
GROUP NUMBER ALLOWANCES
Beneficiaries:
Men 139 $ 1,654,768
Women 6 22,923
: Total 145 $ 1,677,691
it Disability Retirements:

Men 3 3 23,548
Women 35 308,503
Totai 38 3 332,051
Grand Total ' 183 $ 2,009,742

JUDGES AND SOLICITORS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

MMTYT ATTTRATIAIIT: 4 ATTL 4 ATAIFT A T TRTAH/MTYMTIRAATIATM 4 ¥ T Pt nlal

THE NUMBER AND ANNUAL RETIREMENT ALLOWANCES OF
BENEFICIARIES AND CONTINGENT BENEFICIARIES
AS OF JULY 1, 1994

ANNUAL
RETIREMENT
GROQUP NUMBER . ALLOWANCES
Service Retirements:
Men 55 $ 3,299,294
Women 0 . 0

l R Total 55 $ 3,299,294

i Disability Retirements:

P : Men 1 $ 56,685
o Women 0 v 0
. Total 1 $ 56,685
: !’ - Beneficiaries of Deceased Members:

Men 0 0

: Women 31 634,509

Total 31 $ 634,509
Grand Total 87 $ 3,990,488

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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Valuation Date

tr_1

aiuation Date

7-01-94
7-01-93
7-01-92
7-01-91
7-01-90
7-01-89
7-01-88
6-30-87
6-30-86

AV l v ]

6-30-85

7-01-94
7-01-93
7-01-92
7-01-91
7-01-90
7-01-89
7-01-88
6-30-87
6-30-86
6-30-85

4,163 796 49322 .

3,247 1,324 45955
2,968 i

L3700

3,196 1,305 42,067

2,470 895 30,977

GARS

Added Deleted Balance

7 0 183
24 4 176
6 4 156
15 2 154
8 3 141
21 5 136
3 1 120
7 0 1i8
6 3 111
12 3 108

63

492
350
314
356
390
333
210
234
188
16

[

~ W

LN = o NN

T omth o
South Carolina Retirement Systems
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50
94
39
106
&3
84
51
84

<

55

JSRS
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Added Deleted Balance

4,133
3,691

3,435
3,160

~ A

2,910

Added Deleted Balance

87
82
75
65
63
63
55
55
54
49




SCRS

PORS

Note:

ACTUARIAL SECTION

SUMMARY OF ACCRUED AND UNFUNDED
ACCRUED LIABILITIES

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Aggregate Assetsasa % Unfunded Annial UALasa%
Valuation Valuation Accrued of Accrued Accrued Active Member of Active
Date Assets Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities  Payroli Member Payrolt
7-01-94 $ 10,308,386 $ 12,776,483 80.7% $ 2,468,097 $ 4,087,078 60.4%
7-01-93 9,392,497 11,752,769 79.9% 2,360,272 3,989,960 59.2%
7-01-92 8,472,313 10,763,891 78.7% 2,291,578 3,793,708 60.4%
7-01-91 7,612,942 9,875,807 77.1% 2,262,865 3,664,611 61.7%
7-01-90 6,813,695 8,896,453 76.6% 2,082,758 - 3,484,578 59.8%
7-G1-89 6,068,557 8,139,477 74.6% 2,070,920 3,305,350 62.7%
7-01-88 5,413,702 6,740,902 80.3% 1,327,200 3,023,359 43.9%
6-30-87 4,805381 5,656,658 85.0% 851,277 2,796,512 30.4%
6-30-86 4,202,379 5,028,250 83.6% 825,871 2,634,443 31.3%
6-30-85 3,576,867 3,786,910 94.5% 210,043 2,391,292 8.8%
7-01-94  $ 1,096,530 § 1,201,090 91.3% $ 104560 $ 429,264 24.4%
7-01-93 981,524 1,063,874 92.3% 82,350 403,249 20.4%
7-01-92 870,615 954,944 91.2% 84,329 390,220 21.6%
7-01-91 765,510 864,974 88.5% 99,464 375,706 26.5%
7-01-90 666,699 743,089 89.0% 82,390 355,760 23.2%
7-01-89 553,732 611,393 90.6% 57,661 304,752 18.9%
7-01-88 475,020 530,251 89.6% 55,231 269,171 20,5%
6-30-87 414,685 419,672 98.8% 4,987 239,527 2.1%
6-30-86 353,269 369,432 95.6% 16,163 204,405 7.9%
6-30-85 290,294 315,868 91.9% 25,574 168,495 15.2%

Effective 6-30-84, PORS aggregrate accrued liability reflected all current and future cost of

At va by hila £
'“.'mg increases for current retirees and active members uusluno 1I0r SCIN vice lm.uculcut

Effective 6-30-86, SCRS aggregate accrued hablhty reflected all current and future cost of living -
increases for current retirees and active members eligible for service retirement. ’
Effective 7-1-88, certain actuarial assumptions were changed: a) valuation interest rate changed
from 7.0% to 7.5%; b) salary increase assumptions strengthened. .

Effective 7-1-89, certain actuarial assumptions were changed: a) valuation interest rate change

from 7.5% to 8.0%; b) salary increases, mortality and service retirement tables.

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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JSRS

Valuation
Date

7-01-94
7-01-93
7-01-92
7-01-91
7-01-90
7-01-89
7-01-88
6-30-87
6-30-86
6-30-85

7-01-94
7-01-53
7-01-92
7-01-91
7-01-90
7-01-89
7-01-88
6-30-87
6-30-86
6-30-85

$

Valuation
Assets

28,662 §
26,790
24,851
22,883

1 491
&l,221

19,358
17,446
15,475
13,591
11,729

23,772
19,916
16,317
12,233

e e
South Carolina Retirement Systems
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ACCRUED LIABILITIES

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Aggregate
Accrued
Liabilities

47,839
30,408
29,558
27,779
27,055
24,713

Q0"
22,883

22,514

s o aon

Assets as a %

PR |
of Accrued

Liabilities

59.9%
83.1%
84.1%
82.4%
78.4%
78.3%
76.2%
68.7%

7
63.3%

54.5%

62.5%
60.0%
58.1%
53.6%
49.3%

40.77/0

48.7%

vvvvvv

65

SUMMARY OF ACCRUED AND UNFUNDED

Unfunded Annual
Accrued Active Member

Liabilities Payroli
3 19,177 $ 4,749
3,618 2,954
4,707 2,968
4,896 2,772
5,834 2,788
5,355 2,734
5,437 2,829
7,039 2,734
7,882 2,734
9,783 2,720
$ 31,282 & 9,040
31,108 8,840
29,840 8,871
31,327 8,294
32,853 7,985
29,117 7,636
25,009 7,504
31,398 7,364
32,703 7,073
31,964 6,662

UALasa%
of Active
Member Payroll

403.8%
122.5%
158.6%

176.6%

209.3%
195.9%
192.2%
257.5%
288.3%
359.7%

346.0%
351.9%

336.4%

377.7%
411.4%
_381.3%
333.3%
426.4%
462.4%
479.8%




PORS

Note:

ACTUARIAL SECTION

SOLVENCY TEST

(amounts expressed in thousands)

) v 3)

Active Retirants Active Members Portion of Aggregate Accrued

Valuation Member & (Empioyer Funded Valuation Liabilities Covered by Assets

Date Contributions Beneficiaries Portion} Assets (1) {2} 3
7-6i-94 $ 2,838,478 $ 5,561,280 § 4376725 $ 10,308,386 100% 100% 43.6%
7-01-93 2,558,019 4,920,436 4,274,314 9,392,497 100% 100% 44.8%
7-01-92 2,291,219 4,474,227 3,998,445 8,472,313 100% 100% 42.7%
7-01-91 2,044,630 4,056,100 3,775,077 7,612,942 100% 100% 40.1%
7-01-90 1,812,178 3,509,959 3,574,316 6,813,695 100% 100% 41.7%
7-01-89 1,593,031 3,275,332 3,271,114 6,068,557 100% 100% 36.7%
7-01-88 1,415,351 2,571,753 2,753,798 5,413,702 100% 100% 51.8%
6-30-87 1,261,309 2,181,724 2,213,625 4,805,381 100% 100% 61.5%
6-30-86 1,114,709 1,920,109 1,993,432 4,202,379 100% 100% 58.6%
6-30-85 979,990 1,146,521 1,660,399 3,576,867 100% 100% 87.3%
7-0194 % 226,608 § 547,189 § 427293 % 1,086,530 100% 100% 75.5%
7-01-93 199,005 459,268 405,601 981,524 100% 100% 79.7%
7-01-92 174,014 402,116 378,814 870,615 100% 100% 71.7%
7-01-91 149,622 349,365 365,987 765,510 100% 100% 72.8%
7-01-90 126,946 292,942 329,201 666,699 100% 100% 75.0%
7-01-89 105,354 246,292 259,747 553,732 100% 100% 77.8%
7-01-88 88,984 181,813 259,454 475,020 100% 100% 78.7%
6-30-87 77,227 151,425 191,620 414,685 100% 100% 97.4%
6-30-86 67,080 123,394 178,958 353,269 100% 100% 91.0%
6-30-85 56,528 115,403 143,937 290,294 100% 100% 82.2%

Effective 6-30-84, PORS aggregate accrued liabilities reflect all current and future cost-of-living
increases for current retirees and active members eligible for service retirement.

Effective 7-1-88, certain actuarial assumptions were changed: a) valuation interest rate changed
from 7.0% to 7.5%; b) salary increase assumptions were strengthened.

Effective 7-1-89, certain actuarial assumptions were changed: a) valuation interest rate chang
from 7.5% to 8.0%; b) salary increases, mortality and service retirement tables.

T —,——  —
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GARS

JSRS

Valuation
Date

7-01-94
7-01-93
7-01-92
7-01-91
7-01-90
7-01-89
7.01-88
6-30-87
6-30-86

6-30-85

7:01-94
7-01-93
7-01-92
7-01-91
7-01-90
7-01-89
7-01-88
6-30-87
6-30-86
6-30-85

$

SOLVENCY TEST
(amounts expressed in thousands)
8] 2) &)
Active Retirants Active Members Portion of Aggregate Accrued
Member & (Employer Funded Valuation Liabilities Covered by Assets
Contributions Beneficiaries Portion) Assets [4)) 2 3)
5,609 § 26,786 $ 15,404 § 28,622 100% 85.9% 0.0%
5,271 16,516 8,621 26,790 100% 100% 58.0%
5,129 14,275 10,154 24,851 100% 100% 53.6%
4,624 14,176 8,979 22,883 100% 100% 45.5%
4,328 13,102 9,625 21,221 100% 100% 39.4%
3,953 11,593 9,167 19,358 100% 100% 41.6%
3,657 9,752 9,474 17,446 100% 100% 42.6%
3,270 10,564 8,680 15,475 100% 100% 18.9%
2,972 9,704 8,796 13,591 100% 100% 10.4%
2,602 9,631 9,279 11,729 100% 94.8% 0.0%
8,992 % 43,752 $ 30,578 § 52,040 100% 98.4% 0.0%
7,948 42,000 27,760 46,600 100% 92.0% 0.0%
7,053 37,058 27,150 41,421 100% 92.7% 0.0%
6,556 31,902 29,122 36,253 100% 93.1% 0.0%
5,985 30,057 28,716 31,905 100% 89.4% 0.0%
5.267 26,716 24,944 27,810 100% 84.4% 0.0%
4,930 25,283 18,568 23,772 100% 74.5% 0.0%
4,213 26,705 20,595 19,916 100% 58.8% 0.0%
3,528 26,845 18,648 16,317 100% 47.6% 0.0%
3,063 23,763 23,050 12,233 100% 38.6% 0.0%
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ACTUARIAL SECTION

SCRS
1. Membership
Generally all employees are
required to participate in the

Systems as a condition of
employment.

2. Employee Contributions

- 5% of salary.

1-6% of salary,

Class II 7 55% of salary
for State Departments and
Public Schools.

6.7% of salary for all other
participating employers.

Group Life Insurance
.15% of salary.

Accidental Death Program
N/A

4. Vesting Requirements

5 years entitled to a

deferred auu'uuy
commencing at age 60.

5. Normal Retirement Age

Age 65.

Generally all fuil time
employees whose princip]e

duties are the prescrvauuu
of public order, protection

or prevention and control of

property destruction by fire.

Class I - $21 per month.
Class Il - 6.5% of salary.

Class I - 7.8% of salary.
Class II - 10.3% of salary.

2% of salary.

2% of salary.

5 years - entitled to a

Aoforrad 3
GeItIreaG annﬂ}t}'

commencing at age 55.

Age 55 with 5 years of
service.

6. Reauirements for Full Service Retirement

Age 65 or 30 years of
credited service.

Age 55 with 5 years of
service or 25 years of
credited service.

partmpate upan ta
o o maaabne AF ¢

Ulllbc as meimoctr o1

General Assembly.

53
w

10% of earnable compensa-
tion.

Annual lump-sum
appropriation.

Inciuded within annual
lump-sum appropriation.

N/A

8 years.

Age 60.

Age 60 or 30 years of
service.

Ot e Va2 D adienn b223
South Carolina Retirement Systems
ek e
— U
yaled

I‘\l l
Circuit or amily Court and

justices of the Court of

Appeals and Supreme Court

are rpqnwmi to ﬂﬂl’tlg'lnﬁfl’

upon taking office.

7% of total salary.

Annual lump-sum
appropriation.

SRS N TP RS L N |
nciudaed wiinii aludl
lump-sum appropriation.

N/A

N/A

Age 72.

Age 70 with 15 years of
service, age 65 with 20
years service, 25 years
service regardlless of age




ACTUARIAL SECTION
SCRS PORS GARS
7. Early Retirement
Age 60 with 5% reduction N/A N/A

for each year under age 65;
Age 55 with 25 years service,
reduced 4% for each year of
service under 30,

8. Formula for Normal Service Retirement

Class I - 1.45% of Average
Final Compensation times
years of credited service.

Class II - 1.82% of AFC
times years of credited
service.

Class I - $10.97 per month .

Class II - 2.14% of AFC
times years of credited
service,

9. Requirements for Disability Retirement

v
<
@
B
. @
o)
-~
w
.=
S
L]
a
w
3
=
o

5 years of credited service

feat e ak saladadd
€85 injury is jou reiateaq.

Service retirement benefit
based upon continued
service to age 65 with no
change in compensation.

11. Benefit Options

* Maximum Benefit
Formula benefit as
calculated in item 8. Any
unrecovered contributions
paid upon death.

Option 1

I I

Reduced benefit with lump-

sum payment of

- 1A A oAneedeiloaddcan
accumuilated contribution

balance reduced by 10% per

3 tha fivet +
year during the first ten

years of retirement.

Service retirement benefit
based upon continued
service to age 55 with no

change in compensation.

Maximum Benefit
Formula benefit as
calculated in item 8. Any
unrecovered contributions
paid upon death.

Option 1
Provides a reduced
continued benefit of equal

retirant,

4.82% of earnable compen-
sation times years of
credited service.

5 years of credited service.

The greater of:

a. Service benefit based
upor actual credited
service,

b. 50% of service benefit
based upon continued
service to earlier of age

60 or 35 years service.

Maximum Benefit
Formula benefit as
calculated in item 8. Any
unrecovered contributions
paid upon death.

Option 1
Provides a reduced
continued benefit of equal

amount to the beneficiary of

retirant.

JSRS

N/A

Annual allowance of
71.3% of the current
active salary of the
position.

5 years of credited service.

. . .
Service retirement

formula.

Maximum Benefit

Benefit as calculated in item
8. Continued benefit of one-
third of retirant's benefit to a
spouse beneficary upon death
of retirant.

Optional Allowance

Provides a reduced retirement
allowance to retirant with a
continued benefit of one-third
of the retirant's allowance to a
non-spouse beneficiary.




ACTUARIAL SECTION

SCRS PORS GARS ISRS
Option 2 Option 2 Option 2
Provides a reduced Provides a continued benefit Provides one-half of retired
continued benefit of equal of 50% of the retirant's member's benefit to a
amount to the beneficiary of annuity payable to the surviving designated
retirant. retirant's beneficiary. beneficiary.
Option 3 Option 3
Provides a continued benefit Provides inflated benefit
of 50% of the retirant's until social security
annuity payabie to the payments begin, then
; retirant's beneficiary. annuity reduced to provide
approximate ievel
retirement income.
Option 4
3 Provides inflated benefit until
social security payments
: begin, then annuity reduced
: to prov1de approximate level
retirement income.
Revert to Maximum Revert to Maximum Revert to Maximum N/A
This feature will allow your  This feature will allow your  This feature will allow your
benefits to be changed to the benefits to be changed to the benefits to be changed to the
Maximum Benefit if you Maximum Benefit if you Maximum Benefit if you
select Option 2 or 3 and select Option 1 or 2 and select Option 1 or 2 and
your beneficiary your beneficiary your beneficiary
predeceases you. predeceases you. predeceases you.
12. Post Retirement Increase
4% per year, provided 4% per year, provided As legislated. N/A
Consumer Price Index for Consumer Price Index for
prior calendar year was 3%  prior calendar year was 3%
or higher and provided no or higher and provided no
increase in employer increase in employer
contributions would be coniributions wouid be
required. required.
B 13. Accidenta} Death Program
N/A Provides an annuity to the widow  N/A N/A

{or anmf'erl henpﬁrmrv\ ofa

member whose death was while in

performance of duty. Annuity
would equal 50% of member's

compensation at the time of death.

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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ACTUARIAL SECTION
PORS GARS

14. _Group Life Insurance Benefits

Lump-sum payment equai
to one year's salary payable
to the beneficiary upon the
death of an active member
arith ot lascs ~en ciao O

with at ieast one yeal 01
service,

No service requirement for
death resulting from actual

Ledlll ICSUINR, i Vi v

performance of duties.

Lump-sum payment to
retiree's beneficiary of up to
$3,000 based upon years of
service at retirement.

Lump-sum payment equal
to one year's salary payable
to the beneficiary upon the
death of an active member
with at least one year of
service.

No service requirement for

death mauxuug from actual
performance of duties.

Lump-sum payment to

retiree's beneficiary of up to

$4,000 based upon years of

service at retirement,

15. Withdrawal of Employee Contributions

Accumulated contributions
and credited interest payable
within 6 months but not less
than 90 days after
termination of all covered
employment.

16. Aciuarial

Accumulated contributions
and credited interest payable
within 6 months but not less
than 90 days after
termination of all covered
employment,

Valuation Method

lomta

Pr UJuucu benefit method
with level percentage entry
age normal cost and open-
end unfunded accrued
lahility.

faavLILy

17. Interes t Rat .A.SSllmpflon

8.0% per annum,
compounded annually,

Projected benefit method
with level percentage entry
age normai cost and open-
end unfunded accrued

liability.

0,
8.0% per annum,

compounded annually.

18. Unfunded Accrued Liability (7-01-94)

(Based on actuarial method used for fundin ng p

$2,468,097

=1

$104,560

Lump-sum payment equal
to one year's salary payable
to the beneficiary upon the
death of an active member
with at least one year of
service.

No service requirement for
death resuiting from actual
performance of duties.

Lump-sum payment to
retires's beneficiary of up to
$3,000 based upon years of

service at retirement.

Accumulated contributions
and credited interest payable
within 6 months after
termination of all covered

employment.

Projected benefit method
with entry age normal cost
and open-end unfunded
accrued liability.

8.0% per annum,
compounded annually.

19. Unfunded Accrued Liability Liquidation Period (7-01-94)

29 years

11 years

30 years

—— T EERERRDRRRRmmR

——
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ISRS

Lump-sum payment equal
to one year's salary payable
to the beneficiary upon the
death of an active member
with at least one year of

service.

No service requirement for
death resulting from actual
performance of duties.

Lump-sum payment to
retiree’s beneficiary of up
to $3,000 based upon years
of service at retirement,

>

} Pt RTINS R

accumiiiatea LUHlI'lUllIlOHS
and credited interest

4k
ayable within 6 months

after termination of all
covered emnlovment,

SRR LAAlpaoyincnn

"tJ

Projected benefit method
with entry age normal cost
and open-end unfunded
accrued liability.

8.0% per annum,
compounded annually.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
REVENUE BY SOURCE
(amounts expressed in thousands)

% of Total % of % of Supplemental % of
Year Ended Employee Total Employer Total Investment Total Benefit Total Total
June 30, Contributions Revenue Contributions Revenue Income Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue

1995 § 288997 185% § 340,843 21.8% $ 926003 593% § 6,293  04% $ 1,562,136

1994 275223 19.0% 323,180 223% 841332 582% 6,848  05% 1,446,583
1993 257,733 18.3% 312,781 222% 830,466  59.0% 7,331 0.5% 1,408,311
1992 248,148  19.0% 298,021 229% 749,808 57.5% 7728  0.6% 1,303,705
1991 233,152 193% 286,799 23.8% 678,984  56.2% 8111 0.7% 1,207,046
1990 216,955 194% 266,669  23.8% 626,723  56.0% 8523 08% 1,118,870
1989 199,934  204% 228,115 232% 544,156  55.4% 9269 1.0% 981,474
1988 171,570 19.6% 213,497 243% 484,487 55.2% 7,888  0.9% 877,442
e 1087 159,787 18.5% 203,808 24.1% 474,080 56.0% 8207 1.0% 845,882
i 1986 147,136 17.7% 190,354 22.9% 483,114  58.2% 10,024 1.2% 830,628

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

REVENIIE BV SOIIRCE

ANAS ¥ RIANV/ RS AP A WIINTUANL LY

(amounts expressed in thousands)

%o of Toiai %o of % of Supplemental % of
Year Ended Employee Total Employer Tatal Investment Total Benefit Total Total
June 30, Contributions Revenue Contributions Revenue Income Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue

1995 $ 34762 18.8% § 52,350 283% $ 97,561 528% §$ 150 01% § 184,823
1994 31,487 18.6% 47,866 282% 90,088 33.1% 158 0.1% 169,599
1993 29,183  18.3% 44,753  28.1% 85,230 53.5% 167 0.1% 159,333
1992 27,827 18.8% 43313 29.2% 77,018 519% 186 0.1% 148,344
1991 26,635 195% 43,200 31.6% 66,745 48.8% 191 0.1% 136,771 :
1990 25235 17.3% 57,683 39.5% ~ 63,030 43.1% 205 0,1% 146,153
1989 21,103 20.0% 33,040 31.4% 50,966 48.4% 250 0.2% 105,359
1988 13,634 16.9% 20,330  252% 46,512  57.7% 179 0.2% 80.655
1987 12,110 15.3% 25,859  32.6% 41,175  51.9% 184 02% 79,328
1986 11,427 14.5% 25,768 32.83% 41,108 52.3% 288  0.4% 78,591

e ————
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Year Ended
June 30,

1995

A
1994

1993
1992
1991
1990
1980

P

1988

1987
1986

Year Ended
June 30,

1995
1994
1993

1992
199]

As7a

1990
1989
1988
1987
1986

1985

GENERAL ASSEMBLY RETIREME]
REVENUE BY SOURCE

Emplnvnn

eyee

Contributions

$ 603

IRA DY

Empioyee
Contributions

JUDGES AN

% of

P |
Tutul

Revenue

14.0%
8.8%
9.7%

10.5%
9.4%
9.8%
9.8%
9.3%
9.9%

10.8%

r T~

amountc avp'n-enn..d l.‘ii

Total
Empioyer

Contributions

$

1,225
1,163
1,239
1,147

g
1,026

1,177
1,209
1,414
1,367
1,334

MENT SYST
thousands)
% of
Total Investment
Revenue Income
284% $ 2,490
30.2% 2,346
32.2% 2,234
30.7% 2,194
30.6% 2,007
34.5% 1,899
37.1% 1,729
44.5% 1,470
43.9% 1,442
44.4% 1,344

% of
Total
Revenue

D SOLICITORS RETIREMENT SYSTEM.
REVENUE BY SOURCE
(amounts expressed in thousands)

% of
Total
Revenue

8.5%
9.9%

11.4%

1.5/790

11.0%
8.2%
8.5%
8.9%

10.1%
9.8%

20/
8..‘! 70

10.8%

South Carolina Refirement Svetems

Total
Employer

Contributions

$

4,080
3,930

Q2 O1N

3,910
3,827
3,418
3,298

3,202
3.079

Gy i

3,018
2,925
2,561

% of
Total

Revenue

41.5%
41.6%
43.4%
45.4%
47.3%
48.3%
50.0%

L1 V4
52.6%

54.0%
48.3%
55.0%

T o

. Investment

3

}m;ume

A QNr
4,700

4,576
4,070
3,673
3,214
2,051

2,630
2,185
2,019
2,624
1,593

% of
Total
Revenue

on o~

50.0%
48.5%
45.2%
43.6%
44.5%

43.2%

41.1%
37.3%
36.2%
43.4%
34.2%

Total
Revenue

R

Total
Revenue

$ 9,819
9,444
9,003

O,7LU
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" STATISTICAL SECTION

‘i"‘- ‘Aii N i"“i"““‘y"“'

SUMMARY OF EXPENSES BY TYPE
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Annuity Administrative
Year Ended - Member Refunds Annuity Payments Group Life Payments Supplements Charges . Totat

June 30, Amount % Increase  Amount % Increase  Amount % Increase Amount % Increase Amount % Increase Expenses
1995 $ 45,358 154% § 524311 122% $7.881 8.8% $6,293 -8.1% $9,124 59.8% $ 592.967:
1994 39,291 8.0% 467,185 9.6% 7,241 -8.0% 6,848 -6.6% 5711 -12.7% 526,276
1993 36,392 20% 426401 11.1% 7,870 36% 7331 5.1% 6,542 8.7% 484,5'36?
1992 35,681 <3.9% 383,943 10.6% - 7,595 47% 7,728 -4.7% 6,018 19.0%

991 5 17 47,066 0 1% s 8, U39 A%
1990 35,121 3.6% 315230 16.7% 7,591 125% 8,523 -8.1% 4,909 23.3%
1989 33916 44% 270232 25.0% 6,749 25% 9,269 17.5% 3,981 3.6% 324,147
1988 32,493 18.9% 216,264 13.1% 6,586 64% 7,888 -39% 3,843 8.2% 267,074
1987 27,340 -3.6% 191,283 148% 6,189 0.8% 8207 -18.1% 3,553 0.7% 236,572
1986 28,359 7.6% 166,632 13.3% 6,139 81.6% 10,024 -13.0% 3,527 302% 214,681

’ %
, POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
<. SUMMARY OF EXPENSES BY TYPE
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Accidental Anauity Administrative
Year Ended Member Refunds Annuity Payments Deathi Benefits Group Life Payments Supplements Charges Tota)
Juoe 30, Amount % Increase  Amount % Increase  Amount % Increase  Amount % Incresse  Amount % Increase  Amount % Incresse Expenses. &

1995 $ 6,665 19.5% $ 53,653 188% § 564 -1.9% § 969 28% § 150 51% § 979 64.8% § 62980
1994 551 96% 45,145 14.2% 575 14.2% 789 -20.7% 158 -5.4% 594 -12.5% 52,838
1993 5,090 79% 39,522 13.2% 533 242% 995 11.2% 167 -10.2% 679 11.1%
1992 4,718 63% 34917 153% 429 3.9% 895 21.3% 186 ) -2.6% 611 222%
1991 4,439 93% 30,28t 16.5% 413 0.5% 703 -25.1% I -6.8% 500 10.4%
1990 4,062 12.8% 26,000 28.2% 411 16.8% 939 22.0% 205 -18.0% 453 28.3%
1989 3,602 214%  20,28! 36.0% 352 10.7% 770 13.9% 250 39.7% 353 54%
1988 2,967 27.6% 14,909 154% 38 10.0% 676 21.8% 179 -2.7% 335 10.9%
1987 2,326 173% 12922 17.1% 289 20.8% 864 49.3% 184 -36.2% 302 4.7%
1986 1,983 1.1% 11,034 13.7% 239 0.7% 519 74.0% 288 -20.5% 289 32.0%

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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ATISTICAL SECTION

GENERAL ASSEMBLY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SUMMARY OF EXPENSES BY TYPE

(amounts expressed in thousands)

GROUP LIFE ADMINISTRATIVE
YEAR ENDED MEMBER REFUNDS ANNUITY PAYMENTS PAYMENTS CHARGES
JUNE 30, AMOUNT % INCREASE AMOUNT % INCREASE AMOUNT % INCREASE AMOUNT v INCREASE
1995 $ 13 552% $ 2,905 47.5% § 10 400.0% $ 25 56.3%
1994 29 -25.6% 1,969 6.8% 2 -75.0% 16 ~15.8%
1993 39 -30.4% 1,843 9.4% 8 60.0% 19 5.6%
1992 56 -9.7% 1,684 6.6% 5 -81.5% 181 2.5%
1991 62 264.7% 1,580 6.4% 2 3.8% i60 0.0%
1990 17 54.6% 1,485 14.8% 26 -3.7% 16 23.1%
1989 11 -60.7% 1,294 10.6% 27 13 8.3%
1988 28 22.2% L170 0.8% 12 9.1%
1987 36 93.3% Ligl - 4.6% 27 1 -0.3%

1986 18 -52.5% L1110 9.6% 11 26.3%

JUDGES & SOLICITORS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

UMMARY OF EXPENSES BY TYPE
(amounts expressed in thousands)

GROUP LIFE ADMINISTRATIVE
YEAR ENDED MEMBER REFUNDS ANNUITY PAYMENTS PAYMENTS CHARGES
JUNE 30, AMOUNT % INCREASE AMOUNT % INCREASE AMOUNT v, INCREASE AMOUNT INCREASE
1995 $ 2 $ 4584 18.0% $ i 98.9% $ 46 64.3%
1994 3,884 25% 92 3066.7% 28 -%.7%
1993 ‘ 3,790 19.8% 3 -66.7% 31 10.7%
1992 58 3,163 11.1% g 450.0% 28 16.7%
1991 2,848 7.2% 2 -80.0% 24 92.1%
1990 47 2,657 13.4% 10 22 29.4%
1989 2,344 ©182% 17 6.3%
1988 1,983 0.6% 16 143%
1987 2 1,972 4.6% 14 14.8%
1986 1,885 19.3% 68 -1.7% 12 49.0%

T e ————
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TOTAL
EXPENSES

2,953

2,016

1,909
1,763
1,685
1,544
1,345
1,210
1235

5,222

1,139

Ay
TOTAL

EXPENSES

4,633
4,004
3,824
3,258
2,874
2,736
2,361
1,959
1,988
1,965




Service Retirees Disability Retirees Beneficiarics Total

F'; ; Average Average Average Average
f Monthly Moenthly Monthly Monthly
Number Benefit Number Benefit Number Benefit Number Benefit
June 1995
: ; State Agency 14,344 § 1,027.00 2,591 § 680.76 2,111 § 679.30 19,046 $ 941.36
| i . Public Schools 21,415 932.09 2,195 727.64 ,363 581.81 24,975 894.98
| . Other 5,449 624.82° 885 582.23 905 460.00 7,239 599.01
b Total 41,208 924.50 5,671 683.53 4381 ©603.62 51,260 870.42
|
‘ june 1954
State Agency 13,358 978.80 2,437 653.45 2,016 694.36 17,811 902.09
Public Schools 21,020 890.92 2,106 712.10 1,352 673.59 24,478 863.53
Other 5,239 595.98 824 569.61 867 408.57 6,930 569.40
Total 39,617 881.55 5,367 663.59 4,235 629.22 49,219 836.07
y June 1993
State Agency 12,354 927.58 2,298 626.97 1,902 677.93 16,554 857.16
Public Schools 19,948 855.15 1,959 678.02 1,199 577.80 23,106 825.74
Other 4,792 570.47 769 530.24 790 405.99 6,351 545.14
Total 37,094 842.49 5,026 632.07 3,891 591.86 46,011 79831
June 1992
State Agency < 11,746 874.67 2,159 598.15 1,790 631.39 15,695 808.88
Pubiic Schoois 19,322 g11.84 1,872 643.06 1,105 550.40 22,299 784.72
Other 4,501 535.34 722 529.32 760 410.75 5,983 518.78
Total 35,569 797.60 4,753 605.38 3,655 561.02 43,977 757.16
June 1991
State Agency 11,172 821.42 1,996 577.18 1,656 576.79 14,824 761.21
Public Schools 18,701 772.48 1,755 634.15 1,041 530.59 21,497 749.47
Other 4,308 509.74 676 486.52 705 381.19 5,689 491.05
Total 34,181 755.36 4,427 585.92 3,402 522.12 42,010 718.62
June 1990
State Agency 11,223 762.99 1,839 536.50 1,427 510.29 14,489 709.35
Public Schools 18,263 735.21 1,447 601.15 843 459.02 20,553 714 45
Other 4,043 471.68 598 480.41 530 410.10 5,171 456.12
Total 33,529 712.73 3,884 55195 2,800 456.96 40,213 679.39
June 1989
State Agency 10,718 680.00 1,723 486.63 1,361 456.44 13,802 633.81
Public Schools 17,788 654.45 1,366 541.71 812 410.59 19,966 636.82
Other 3,838 416.32 558 436.03 503 284.88 4,899 405.07
Total 32,344 634,66 3,647 499.52 2,676 410.28 38,667 606.38
June 1988
State Agency 10,134 580.32 1,578 428.53 1,306 394.77 13,018 543.30
Public Schools 16,929 558.35 1,254 471.99 764 357.23 18,947 544.54
Other 3,648 351.17 526 371.63 463 244.82 4,637 347.59
Total 30,711 541.71 3,358 43585 2,533 356.03 36,602 519.14
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STATISTICAL SECTION
SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Distribution of Retiree Population & Average Benefit (Continued)
Service Retirees Disability Retirees Beneficiaries Total
Average Average Average Average
Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly
Number Benefit Number Benefit Nuntber Benefit Number Benefit
June 1987
State Agency 9,666 $ 541,68 1,457 § 409.52 1,255 § 356.75 12378 § 507.38
Public Schools 16,399 517.3% 1,171 448.33 716 337.68 18,286 505.94
Other 3,400 333.65 459 364.79 435 241.07 4,294 327.60
Total 29,465 504.16 3,087 417.59 2,406 330.16 34,958 484.54
June 1986
State Agency 8,939 496.84 1,345 395.02 1,195 344,04 11,479 469.01
Public Schools 15.637 483.53 1,073 431.68 681 327.15 17,391 474.22
Other 3,065 299.57 411 403.11 421 216.54 3,897 296.37
Totat 7,641 467.44 2,825 500.30 2,297 315.67 32,767 451.24

June 1008

June 1994
June 1993
June 1992
June 1991
June 1990
June 1989
June 1933
June 1987
June 1926

NOTE:

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Distribution of Retiree Population & Average Benefit

Service Retirees Disability Retirees Beneficiaries Total
Average Average Average Average
Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly

Number Benefit Number  Benefit Number  Benefit Number Benefit

3,252 §  1,093.29 614 § 967.12 610 3 652.71 4,476 ¥ 1,015.94

2,927 1,051.19 561 936,23 545 602.30 4,033 974.54

2,605 994.66 520 910.67 524 610.68 3,649 927.55

2,414 931.80 484 877.30 487 561.13 3,385 870.68

2,216 886.38 416 810.91 452 524.09 3,084 - 823.10

2,089 817.81 451 763.27 378 502.91 2918 768.59

1,879 716.50 377 655.99 351 448.33 2,607 671.64

i,684 570.74 353 585.76 318 383.69 2,355 541.73

1,592 520.94 321 530.58 294 361.10 2,207 501.05

1,459 472.28 307 500.30 282 328.36 2,048 456.66

Due to the small population size of the GARS and JSRS, presentations for these System

n
)
=1
w
-
2
-~
2]
j-o
g

Statistics were generated from initial processing of data and may vary slightly from final information submitted
to the Actuary.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

PARTICIPATING EMPLOYERS AND ACTIVE MEMBERS

Number of Number of Annual
Year Ending Participating Active Payroll Average Percent
June 30, Employers Members (000's omitted) Pay Increase
SCRS
1995 718 186,825 3 4,432,079 § 23,723 2.6%
1994 707 183,489 4,241,616 23,116 3.0%
1993 755 181,760 4,077,247 22,432 2.6%
, 1992 738 177,854 3,890,324 21,874 3.3%
| 1991 729 176,866 3,743,281 21,165 2.4%
1990 728 168,548 3,483,223 20,666 5.0%
1989 710 163,205 3,211,953 19,680 3.4%
1988 691 158,441 3,016,335 19,038 3.7%
1987 670 152,385 2,796,512 18,352 4.2%
1986 653 149,537 2,634,443 17,617 7.4%
PORS
1995 280 20,263 $ 478387 § 23,609 3.2%
1994 267 19,016 434,900 22,870 0.6%
1993 276 18,046 410,281 22,735 2.5%
1992 269 17,889 396,799 22,181 4.0%
a8 1991 262 17,440 371,986 21,329 1.8%
e 1990 258 16,361 342,945 20961  5.0%
' ‘v 1989 243 15,202 303,390 19,557 6.2%
1988 238 13,900 261,190 18,791 5.4%
1087 235 13,441 239,527 17,821 5.5%
1986 229 12,105 204,405 16,886 3.6%
NOTE: Due to the small population size of the GARS and JSRS, the above information
is not presented for these pians.

Statistics were generated from initial processing of data and may vary slightly from

final information submitted to the Actuary.
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PARTICIPATING EMPLOYERS
» SCRS
Participating Employers Covered By Statute
State Agencies & Institutions of Higher Education T 123
PSSO DISIIES . o 104
NAME SCRS
Part:cipatmg Empioyers Covered By Separate Agreement..... . 491
iy e SO, M
OBV o i
Town of Due West e %]
Donalds-Due West Water & SOWEE AUNOTHY oot ]
Town of Calhoun Ottt ]
City of North Augusta M
S M
Aiken-Bamberg-BamweIl-Edgeﬁeld Regional Library Board.........comooe M
O 4}
Beech Island Rural COMMUY WAICE DISTICt oo o]
Town of WagenerM
Housing Authority of the CUY OF AKEN ottt 4}
Three Rivers Solid Waste AUOTHY ot 4]
F OBt M
O OFMONEIR .t %]
Lower Savannah Council ofGovemment ............... 24|
Allendale County ... e ™
Allendale-Hampton Jasper REGIONAILIIATY. ot M
Town of AL o 4]
Allendale County Office on BBIG ottt )
Town ofFalrfax .......................... =
s IO PR oo %]
Anderson County oo |
Anderson County LADIAY BOAI. o M
o O WAMBISION o |
Anderson County Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse........ooom %}
T O ot 4}
Town of Pendleton ket %]
Belton-Honea Path Water AVIOTIY oot SO |
* Homeland Park W O DISICE o M
South Carolina Retirement Systems
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STATISTICAL SECTION

NAME SCRS PORS

Town of West Pelzer

...................................................................................................

Broadway Water and Sewer Disirict
Starr-Iva Water COMPANY ........c..covruuerireerceciecreeeeeeceseseceesereessessesssesesesssons vesrrennenene reerers
Town of Pelzer .......ccocovmmienerirericcieeeseve e

Anderson Countyv Disabilities & S

TERRRS

Sandy Springs Water Company

Citv of Ramhero

0|
4|
4}
&
&
4}
|
4}
|
CItY Of BAMBEIZ ....ooeieiesrce ettt st es e tes s es s %]
Bamberg County Office 0n AZING .....ovurvuivuireieicicieeees s eseeessesseseessessesses s, .4
City of Denmark.............ccooverereveeerrererenene. ettt n et e e aene ceere et M
TOWN OF OIAr ....ooviiic ettt n s ™
]
vi
&
%}
)
1%}
%]}
4}
4}
%}

Bamberg County Disabilities & Special Needs Board ............... e et .

s o YIS cbmn —
TOWI OF WRISTOM 11vvv oot e e e s et e oo e

BarnWell COUNLY .......cciiiiecirireiiciss sttt ses s s eseses s s s s esaseses
City of Barnwell.....ccccccovvieiiiieeceeeree s, et s st e s n e e nnerrre e e s ennreranan
Barnwell County Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse

TOWN OF EIKO ..ottt s s s ese s enes s ent e s s ee s sson
Barnwell County Office 0n AZING .....c.ocvevvvieieiiiecreeeeeeeeeoneseeees e s, RSO .
Allendale-Barnwell County Disabilities & Special Needs Board ............. rerrerrese s .
Beaufort County
City of Beaufort

Beaufort Memorial Hospital .............c.c.ccovverennene..,
Sea Pines Public Service District ...........ceovuueen....
Lowcountry Regional Transportation Authority....

RBluffton Townshin Fire District

ARSIy 2 (] A D

Town of Port ROYal ......co.ovvivevriieceecccsicc e

Fripp Island Public Service District.........ocovrvvevenenen. ettt erees
Berkeley COUNLY ......c.ccvvvirrieieicire et vt et e s s tesas e s s s s eees s
City of Hanahan .........cccoccvveuiveririviiceeccnieeveese e e ennnan et syt sre e st bae e sreabreas

Qarzras A el Sdee
Berkeley County Water and S

TOWR OF St. StEPhEI ...ttt en et esesas s se s enas vvenes
Moncks Corner Water Works COmmuisSion ......e.weveeeeeveroroveseieonn, eerrararesiaesreseenes
ToWN Of MONCKS COMET «.....vuutreeeeeeeeeeee e 4]
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STATISTICAL SECTION

NAME SCRS PORS

................................................................................................................

.......................................................................................................

Calhoun County Disabilities & Special Needs Board
Calhoun Conservation Dlstrlct

...........................................................

.................................................

Mt. Pleasant Water and SEWEE COMMISSION ..ottt
Town of Sullivans Island ..................___

St. Andrews Public Service District CoMMISSION ..o
James Island Public Service District Commission........ .

Charleston County Park and Recreation Commlssxon
City of North Charleston .........................................................................................................

North Charleston Sewer District .....oooovvivi
North Charleston District

Charleston County Housing and Redevelopment ABHOLItY .o
Town of James Island............. .

................................................................

Charfeston Naval Complex Redevelopment ...
G2IREY BOAIA Of PUIIC WOTKS ..o
HETOKEE COUNY ottt
City ofGaffney

2

|
o
M
A
|
o
-
2

|

i

o
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STATISTICAL SECTION

NAME SCRS PORS

Cherokee County Public Library .........coooviencrinnncrnnieincnncinenns T —— 4}

Cherokee County Recreation DiStrict .........cccvumveivcerenererrsenscnnnns vereraerie s snennnn e 4}

Cherokee County Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse ..................... e SRR " |

ToWN Of BIACKSDUIG ......covveicreirierireieererre et ssersssesesesssssssessssesssssesssisnsnsssssens B |

Defender Corporation of Cherokee County ........coovreevenuvvncnciniveciecnans trereraeiie e %}

Cherokee County Disabilities & Special Needs Board........cc.ccerveercrenninnrcnniceicsinnennnnnns M

Cherokee LTC ...ooverueriecerririreee s e tearas SRR ettt 4|

Cherokee County Development Board ... e, ™

CIty OF CRESLET ..vcvivereriierecriinisres i ssessae s esese e es s ssse oo sssenesesesesscos e anes o | M

Chester COunty .......ccereveeverernerrrsseresenn. %}

Chester County Library

Chester Metro DISITICE ....cccccvvvrieiiririeiiisriceriieereeereresessessesseesrssesseessssserensosmeseranssemassnessesseransn

Chester Sewer District ..o esenesresresennnes cererereeesirbaneereres e revesevrensioses %

Hazel Pittman Center ........ccccomniriemeimiecisinesnessnsssssssssesssssssessenes ettt ranantes |

Housing Authority of the City of Chester .........ccccccoeeieeeenenenans e e 8|

Chester County Disabilities & Special Needs Board...........ccccvcvnicrinnnncicno. |

TOWN OF CRETAW .....vueveiviieieiieicecee st sen s s ses s b st se s b enasses st e basbesasaesssaebasassesenstesas | %]

TOWN Of PAZEIANA ..ot srensseseerebesessisssese s sessssssessssarssssessssbenssresssssossnsssnsasns %} &

CHESLETTIEIA COUNLY u.veviiereeiieiseeeeee s tesse s sess st sessbessbesesaesss s besss s bessssaebessssassesassasasssenas ) M

TOWN OF PAFICK .....cvvveveveirieiereieseirerirernessaseeseesasasae s sssnsascncsanenenes evereeeeeeie et s s e s s ns st renes ]

Town of Chesterfield | o4

Town of McBee ..o, ] ]

Chesterfield County Disability & Special Needs Boar )

Chesterfield Soil and Water Conservation DiStrict .......c.cocevevevveininnnninnen e [}

TOWN O JEFTEISON .....vceciurieiscieriecseieri e serses e sssa s st s s es et st ben b benasbenacs ™ 1|

Chesterfield County Rural Water Company, InC. ........coceerricrenicneecicciensinssnsesessosasasnsens M

CLArendon COUNLY ...vvvvieveivecsiee st sesessessebess s sssssasaessssesssasssasssesesssssssmsesessesssrssssesessssenrns & )

CHtY OF MBNNINE «.vvoveveivivsiovisiiieisesets e sss et is st sessssesessesesesssssssetesssssssnsessssssesesssassessissnsses %} %}

Harvin Clarendon County LiDIary ........co.couiiciminrciieicisnieisiiessiossisieneessons %]

TOWN Of SUMMEITON.......cvcveciereeesiesees s b s s sesessns st nsss s b snss s s arirassbasssasssasanes ™ 74|
%] |
|
M
%} |
& 4]

|

DArlinton COUNLY ......ivieneerneniuiesirassseisessesssisiassssesssssssssssssssesesssssesasssesssssessssssssesesssansas ) %)
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NAME ’ S

Darlington County Library Commission ... reerseerenereaaten &
Darlington County Commumty ACHION ABENCY ....courvrererereersreor o treerrersannesenneas M
City of Hartsville ......... bbbt st s
Rubicon ..., tracre bt raarenes e .M
City of Darlington ................. st sttt s e M
HartSVllle Community Center Building Commission ........... )

............................................................

Darlington County Disabilities & Special Needs Board
Housing Authority of Darlington

........................................................

..........................................................

..........................

City of Dillon ...coevuevreevreereeeeee) et
2 Dillon County Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse
5 Dillon County Employment and Training Programs ..............cooe
Town of Latta ............. bbb b et et et et S
TOWR OF Lake VIEW w..occvviverirees e sereeseesseeseeeeoes e %]

........................................................

...........................................................

m ¢ Commission o lic S, L LT PP TR U UU IZ[
Town of SUMMEIVILIE c..oovvvvvr oo ™
Dorchester County Commission on Alcohol and Drug ABUSE ......coeeurrmrereerreeeeereren 74|
Dorchester County Board of Disabilities & - Special Needs ................ resetenrsreintonssrrorenreanirare ]
Town Of RidgEVIlle w.u...u.veveveeeereeeeeeeseeeooooo e rerehe e es e SOOI % |
uuscut:lu l_,U’ui‘lty .......... B PP PN PETTTIYPIN TTTPIPINRIN cererareneens e “

Town of Trenton.............cccorrerervrennnn., e s e M
Town of Edgefield ...........ovveeeocoreoeeecoeeeereeeoooo reererenenans e e ™
Town of Johnston.................... R et eererennneaas Cererereresanetas bttt e n s s e enerenans M
Town of Winnsboro ...............eoovveeemveemmsoooooo Gttt st tee s s s ers e rnesaote ]
Fairfield COUNty ........cooovmvvvueerereeeoeeseeeeeeeeesoeeeoeooeoeooeoeooooo ——— et 2]
Fairfield County Library ........................... et ettt et ceeennes M
Fairfield County Memorial HOSPital ...........oovvvovooovoooooosooooooooooo SO %]
Fairfield County Substance Abuse Commission................... .. ttenertenseisinrentstertsnernrararens |
Fairfield County Disabilities & Special Needs Board.................. vereretenen ST e .M
Fairfield County Council on Aging......oooovvveoorveoooo vt e, beererrrers |
Town of Ridgeway................... e e S, desseassussassnssesuensssessnasarnsssnen %}
City of Florence ......... bttt et e e e |
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_STATISTICAL SECTION
NAME SCRS PORS
FIOeNCE COUNLY vttt M 1|
Building Commission of the City and County of Florence
Town of Pamplico ......oooocooccvvvevivesoo )
Town of Olanta........cccovvveevevcccoveecieeovevoeeeeeeeeeeeeoeoooo 4
4|

............................................. M
The Pee Dee Tourism COMMiSSIon .........covoveovmrmsmscoooooo 4|
Florence County Disabilities and Special Needs Board ...........uv..oveeverovenrsoooo |
Pee Dee Regional Council of GoVernments. ... M
ToWn Of TIMMONSVIIIE ..ot 4] 04|
Florence City/County Civic Center Commission ..
CHY OF LAKE City oot M
Johnsonville Rural Fi
City of Georgetown .M M
GEOFGROWN COUNLY ..ottt M M
Rural Community Water District of Georgetown Count
Georgetown County Water and Sewer District
Georgetown County Disabilities & Special Needs Board .............v..overeeveoovreoooo M
Georgetown Soil and Water Conservation DiStrict. ..o
Georgetown County Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission ..o M
Greenville Commission of Public Works ... Gessertrurenetnrseinsasastarseasrere s tansenaneasasnns M
Clty OF GIEONVIIIE ..ot | M
Greer Commission of PUBLIC WOIKS ...vvvovceervooreoes s ™
Greenville County Library ............oovcooveommioooo 0]
Greenville County |
Western Carolina Regional Sewer
Parker Sewer and Fire Subdistrict
City of Greer %]

Donaldson Development Commission Donaldson CeNter ..o |
Greenvil!e Retirement ‘“enter

LIV INIE AARACHICHLY U

..........................................................................

Defender Corporation of Greenville County...........

Greenville County Disabilities & Special Needs Board

Berea Public Service District

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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STATISTICAL SECTION

NAME SCRS PORS

Greenville Memorial Audltorlum District .............. et rerreeeas %]
Greenwlle County Recreation District ...................................................... trasreten e rsarnensa, M

Belmont Fire and Sanitation DlStrICl’ Commxssmn ............................................................... |
Wade Hampton Fire and SOWEE DISHHIC oottt 4}
Greenville Airport Commission e [

Greenville Coun Y MUSSUT COMMISSION oottt

M

M

Clty of Fountam I ivi
M

4}

Town of City Vl Wi

Greenville Redevelopment Authority
Duncan Chapel Fire District ... e
City View Water & Sewer
SC Appalachian Councii of Governments ...
Greenwood Commissioners of Public Works...........

City of Greenwood
Greenwood County .
Abbewlle-Greenwood Regional Library Board
Greenwood Metropolitan District Commission
Housmg Authority of the City of Greenwood............ orsesarerenenasaesnes SO M
Emerald Mult;- -County Board for Disabilities & Special Needs ..........ooooovoovoe %]
Defender Corporation of Abbeville and Greenwood
Old Nmety Six Tounsm Commission ...

Hampton County
Town of Varnville
Town of Brunson oo tsartntsnsenararans v
Hampton County Disabilities & Spemal Needs Board ........... srenrererrerenenas .
Lowcountry Council of Governments .................... e
Defender Corp. of Allendale, Hampton and Jasper
Horrv Cou

mix
----- J vvulll.)’ .......-.....-........-......-...-......-.-....-.-....-u.....-...-........-.................-.....-.n...a.--.u..'.....

G
S

M
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STATISTICAL SECTION

NAME SCRS
City of Myrtie BEACKH .....c.ovvurerreieiennenicent e sesee s s eene e et anans . %
Town of Surfside Beach

City of LOIIS .oovveveievicnieeeneerieeneinan

Public Defender Corporation of HOMy COURLY..........oucuecieseeeieecs oo eeeneesesesseres s oo i
Grand Strand Water and Sewer Authority ...........o.coeovuecererrenn, e |
Housing Authority of the City of Conway ............... v ienes e saenaes v M
Horry County Commission on Alcohol and Drug ABuSe .............cccoeovmemomeeeeeeesenn, )
Horry Soil Conservation District ..........cccervvenenee. e e e sb et e st e erene &
Town of AHlantic BEACK .....cccvevieriiiiireieeic et es s en e s 4}
TOWN OF AYNOT ..ottt sttt en s e e sese s e e s ssone M
Waccamaw Economic Opportumty Council.....cccovvverinnee. e e nas e weverns |
Horry County Solid Waste Authority, Inc. ...... v rerrereneeres Ve e narane R
Horry County Disabilities & Special Needs Board............... e st ens 4]
JASPET COUNLY ...oiveiieietce et s st en e e erane s ee s ssenesan 4]
Town of Ridgeland ... v ennas RN S M
Jasper County Development BOArd ...........cooceecriceeriiecnieieceseveeseceenesssnsscennns et |
City of CamAen ..ottt st eee et s 1}
Kershaw COUNLY ....c..ocviiiiniiciceneneee ettt st e e es s e s ses s
Lugoff Water District of Kershaw County ...............ccu........ crersrenes ettt 4}
Town of ElIgin ......cccovevvveecieirnnane. ettt et b b e et s bbb eneereen [}

Town of Heath Springs ............ bbbttt A e bbb bbb e n s bR e bbb enasserene %)
Lancaster County Water and Sewer DiStrict ........ccooocoeevevnneeseeneenenecns e M
Lancaster County Dlsabllmes & Special Needs Board ....................... cererereret et e reateras %]
Town of Kershaw ........c.co.ocvvveveeeeeereereeeenne. ettt st es st vevereeren e sanans &
CItY OF CHITON ..ottt s se e s s ee s s eees e s s s e M
Laurens COUNtY ......oovvevrereieeeiececeeneeseies oo es e et ettt ser e ens OO %
Laurens Commissioners of PUBIIC WOTKS..........co.oiiiierioieeceeeeceeeeressseeseseseeseseserassns i
Laurens County Commission on Alcohol and Drug ADUSE .......veveeeeeeereeererrerersrenan. reeeenens |
Town of Gray Court .....................

Laurens County D;sa_h___-_w & !

Laurens County Water and Sewer COMMISSION .........c.oereeeurerereresrsreesnsenes BN |
Lee County ........ccou........ et e e s s s b r et e nenanansen et nens |

BEA N HEE @HE HAE {AHF RHNAN

B A



e

‘Town of Springdale ..........cooooeoreevemeroeerr .

STATISTICAL SECTION

g sy

NAME | : SCRS PORS

Town of Bishopville....................... ceereenrens et ene et eeas SRR |
Lee County Disabilities & Special Needs Board........ooo.ooo e, M
Lexington County ... s

—
3]
.

®
=]
=]
5
2
[
82
@]
o
=4
(]
-

...............................................................................

.....................................................

Recreation District Lexington County

Irmo-Chapin Recreation District

..................................................................................

.............................................

Town of Gaston .........c.vcevenreveeoeneeeeeeces oo reeerere—— verreremsssassses s naeasasaasanes |
Town of Pelion ...oc..ocoocoocccoopeeoeeceomeoo

Lexington County Public Library System ............ooervoo et ns 24|
Town of Swansea ...........oooovvrerroo ormrnesserssstessrnas s asaaressaans v R ™
Town of Chapin ....................... et e s ]
Town of Irmo ................. b bt RN |
South Carolina Midlands Emergency Medical Service Management Association
Gaston Rural Community Water District ....................__ et s a e res s neaesen |
Lexington County Defender Agency, INC. ....v.vvcvmoooroeoseooo %)
Lexington County Joint Municipal W&S Commission ... %}
Town of Pine Ridge ......c.ceoeuummmnreveeeeeeeeerersossosoooooo e ..

Le_xingtnn-l? ichland xAx!C

sULATANANEALIGAG

Irmo Fire DiStriCt ........ooeeeuereeeoeoeeoeoooeeeeeeeeeseeooooooooooooo
Marion County ...........ocooveeemmoemoro,

City of Marion ...........coveveernron

City of Mullins ...........eooererrrnn,

Mm‘inh {‘onnhr Ty

¥
ASa VAL LVMLY 1

Marlboro County .........cevemeeoeerooo

Marlboro County Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse .,
Defender Corporation of Marlboro County

..........................................................................

Town of McColl........ bttt st

St m—
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NAME SCRS PORS

TOWIL OF CLIO oottt ssevesaseesesaseeesassesessotstsnenassnsasassesesasssssos et esenessesshersssanarashanassasnassananss %]
TOWDL OF MICCOTIILICK .1vveveeeveeersresessseesesseensssssesssssssassessassesssssessnsessussmnmssssasessssasssssseresensanensnssss 4]
McCormick COunty ..oooeerrereeeeeenrerenes et iee et et aatnaan ettt her et r e baes %}

MecCormick Commission of Public Works

McCormick County Water and Sewer AUROTIY.....occemcrerncrminmiss i %}
McCormick HEalth Care CENLET ......civererrierrirersressiesresestssmsssssssesssssnenasessassssenessssmrssosisaens (%]
Cty OF NEWDEITY ...vvoeeeseenereeoseceresenenessossssissrssss s is s ess s bbb o4}
Newberry County oo es et re s e sssse e sssssissssnss D
Newberry-Saluda Regional LIDIary ... |
Clinton-Newberry Natural Gas AUthOTILY .....cc.cecicmermmiesssss s snsees |
Newberry County Nursing Home COmmISSION c....cveuiiiimiimini |
Housing Authority of City of NEWDEITY ...vuiireuereinimerenricisis s %]
TOWN OF PTOSPETILY ..vevovecvririssiicseierasiesssssns s na st s bbb |
Town OF Little MOUNTAIN ..coovveierrietierieerseemaereerereesnsinersesnesesanerssssessasssensssssssrsraniesstsseasontans ™
TOWIL OF WHIITLITE ...cvovveceeeeeeescsesesaesessssssssessassnssesessesscssssssssssesess s ssaesemsas o rnanas s a e s anens M
WHItIITE PUDIE WOTKS oovereceiiieiessiressesemsstessrssesssessssessiesssiessssesnsassssssusssenessassissensaassassssisss %}
Newberry County Water and Sewer AUNOLILY .......c..oivurermiisemsirinrimrissssssssss s |
TOWIL OF POMIAIIA +.vvvovveveereveieieiresessaesesesssarassnsssssssesessssesesssssssssssasssmsassnssssasatssssssasasnssssssssssases M
Newberry Disabilities & Special Needs Board......covviiiiinscin 4|
Newberry Commission On Alcohol & Drug ADUSE ......ccureeririmrisisssssnersnissssens s ]
Westminister Commissioners of Public Works ... %}
OCONEE COUNLY wovvvrreresreereeeeeseerssesesessscessers et ss s eSS M
CHEY OF SEMECA 1.vuvneeiececoriiieirieti e ns )
Seneca Light and Water PLant ... e S— %}
City OF WAIBAIA ....vvvoeeeereerenceneerersssssssssesssss s esbes b s o4}
TOWE OF WESHTHNSIET ©ovvvoveeeeereieotesssssseaemsessssassesesesescsreresscssssssims bbb st ™
Oconee County SEWer COMMISSION ......cvurvinimiesrinmssrs st ssses %]
TOWDN OF WESE UNIOM +rveverererevsiseeetesessssesesssessssssassisssesssessnssbsssssasinsssssssasessossessstssssnssassissanes &
Pioneer RUral Water DISIIICE .......ooverecreuerieriessesereseensesseseisissesssssssssrssssasessmsssssssssssssassassns ™
City of Orangeburg

Orangeburg Department of Public Utilities e seeees et sess e esscnerecnnens D0
OFANEEDULE COUNLY -.ovevoeneevisenismsnniisessssssess s sssssseess s sariss s srsas s s 4|
TOWN OF BEANCHVILIE 1o.v-eeeeevereeeeeeeeisseseseaessiesssseesesesesesesssbsssasassbessssasstassssassesassssasssnnsssnss %
TOWI OF BLIOTEE +evevevevevererecsceresesaassesessssssssssessssssssnsasesesosessssssstsssssssssssssssstesasssasisitisnsssssasens |
TOWI OF NOIER «vvvvevseeeeeecreresees s sesessssesssesessnanse s b botssasa b s s sa s R R e R R e R s e E s h SR bbb 4}
TOWN OF LAVIEZSTON 11vrvvurrruersenriereeceisesssessotsssssesssnsssssssssssssssecessns s isssmasssassssasss s ssssss s isssioses 4}
TOWN Of NOTWAY ..eoovvvverevenssssnsssarscserssesessesssesesessisssssssassasssssssss s ssss s bbb AR R |
TOWN OF SPINEICIA 1...oocevirreert e iascies st b b )

T — o ]
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__ STATISTICAL SECTION
_———
NAME : SCRS PORS
Town 0f BOWIMAN ..o M
TOWN Of SANLEE ...ccovvvvvccnri oo sese e oo
TOWR OF VANCE .o ]
Orangeburg County Disabilities & Special Needs Board
TOWN OF COTAOVA 1ovoooooeet e es oo
City OF BaSIEY ...eovecieeceieeseiveeeeeseeee e eee oo 0]
City Of LIDEILY ....vovivvverierrecec e eeseeesesesesseeee oo %}
Pickens COUNLY ...o.ovuvueueruereereirieeeseeeese e M
Combined Utility System of Easley
CIty OF PICKENS ...t eseseee e |
Town of Central ......cc..c.oouvivveriveieeeer =]
Community Development AZENCY...........ccowrrvrreeeerrmuuoeoneeoeeeesesoesesssesssssooe oo ooeooosoo
Pickens County Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Housing Authority of the City of Easley
City O CIBMSON -.coooovnrivriaiieiticerisee st oo oo o oeeeeeeeeseseeoe 1|
TOWR OF SIX-MIlE .rvvovvoiiiiite e e oo oo oes oo
Six-Mile Rural Community Water District
TOWN OF NOITIS ..ottt et
Easley Central Water District
Pickens County Disabilities & Special Needs Board ................. et |
Southside Rural Community Water DiStrict .........oove.ooeeeooesroeoooesooooooooo ]
Richland Memorial HOSPItal .............ccoovuuereecmnimieeeeeeeeeeeseseeeeeos oo oeoeeoooo |
Richiand County Public LIDIary ........cccoomeivueevveeerceoooeeseeeeseeeeseoseeeeoeooeoooeooeooosoeoeoe M
i Richland County ........ccocouereueiiiccecronmrinnesee oo ] ™
5 City Of COMMDIA .o S - |
. East Richland County Public Service District .......oovvorooveeeroeeosoooooooooooooe %}
Recreation District and Recreation Commission of Richland County .ccoovveeiiecrrrne, 4}
Richland-Lexington Airport DIStHCt ........e..cuuuvoeeeeeeeeeeseoseeeoeeeeoseee oo 4} e
City OF FOTESt ACTES ..v...oouiveeececsceeeseie e eeese s M &~
Columbia MUSEUM Of ATt ...........omereimmimeriieeeceoesiseeesee oo M
TOWN O EASIOVET w.vvuvivveriicecececeinse et ses et oeeeeeeos e oo ) ™M
Richland/Lexington Disabilities & Special Needs Board.................ooovvooooooooooooooo &
7 TOWN Of SAlUAR ..o | 4|
: SAIUAA COUNLY covovvesiece et & ]
" Saluda Commission of Public Works ................................................................................... “
: Saluda County Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse et |
Town Of Ridge SPring ............cceciriumiriiimeiiiienieeeccoeeeseesese s M |
} TOWN OFf WAL oovov et 1]
B ————
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| STATISTICAL SECTION

NAME SCRS

................................................................................

Saluda County Water & Sewer Authority..........................

Spartanburg Commissioners of Public Works

Spartanburg Sanitary SeWer DIStICt ...o.ooooevvvosnevvvoesseoeeseesseensesess oo
SPArtanburg COUNLY .......oooovuvvvrrsceseeresessnsssssssseesseseeeseessooss oo eesesee.
Spartanburg Regional Medical Center..................ovowoovovecomerereroressssssossooooooooooooooooooo
Spartanburg Public LIbrary ................ccoooouevvvveemooosecccreeesessooeeoeooooeooooooooooooooooo
B.J. Workman Memorial HOSPIal .....cooococccovovorosoeeeerses oo
Liberty-Chesnee-Fingerville Water DiStrict w...........ooooooocororosovooooooo
Town Of WOOATUFE ......oovecveveriercect e
Woodruff Roebuck Water DISHICt ...........ueuuruveerrereereoecooereresesesesesesesooeoooooooooooooo
Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water District

TOWN OF LYMAN ...oooociiricein s ooeoeee oo
TOWN O WEIIFORd ....coevovovovtiteceenmneisisiseesessececeenneseeseeeeee e oeoeeeooeee oo
Town Of CheSnee. .........cccummeuenerrreeeeoneeeeeeeee s :
Inman-Campobello Water DISTICE .............uuuuue.muereorooeomerereoeeeseomeososoeoesosooeoooeoooooooosoooooo
TOWR OF COWPERS ..ot tteoessesoeseres e oo eoeoeoeeoeoeeeseo
City Of LANAIUM «..ccooovviiiiriiiiiiitiicicisicietsiesssisssicessssseesesseseresseeseses oo oo soeooeoeseeeeeee
e L T
Town of Campobello..........co.ooovrererooeoeoo

TOWnN 0f PACOIEt MILLS ...vvvovvvveecerccneoimreneieenes e meonere e s oo
CHY OF INMAN oot
Housing Authority of Town of WOOdIUSE .................ccue.ooeoeeeeereeeeeeeeesrooooosoosooooooooooooooooseoo
North Spartanburg Area Fire & Rescue District

TOWN OF DUNCAN ..ot oo
City OF SPAMANDUIE «..oovvo oo
Glendale Fire DISHICE wvvvooioivveovecverececereessssssesennieeeseeesecsesessessssssmsesseseee oo oo
City OF SUMLET .ovvv.vveoceeeeciereeseee e ee oo

SUMLET COUNLY ....ccooosiseriteicccvesesessseessssssssssns s seeeseseeeereseses e ses oo eeeese s
Sumter County Health Department ................o.ooooooovovoeommmmsesssseoooo
Sumter COUNty LIDIAIY.....ocvevvoiioeevvvcereceseemsseereeesssmsseesesessesreeee e soeeesooses oo
Housing Authority of City of Sumter ................oo.oooovovvossiovvore
Santee-Lynches Council for Governments et b st st ensneas
Sumter County Commission on Alcohol and Drug ABUSE ......coermririeceeie e M
TOWN OF MAYESVIle ........ooovoreecereeere e eees e oo seseeeeeeee 4}
TOWN Of PINEWOO ....covvvvvvvrrere e ]
Santee-Wateree Regional Transportation AUHOTIEY ..o M
Sumter County Disabilities & Special Needs BOard ... %)

‘!
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NAME ‘ SCRS PORS

e COUY (%] M

City of Union ...oovveoeveoe e %] &

ooty CABIE LIOAY s ]

TOWN Of JONSVille .. e |

Union County Disabilities & Special Needs Board T

oSG AUROTEY OF City O UNION ..o o M

Union County Development Board .................................................. M

PBSOUTE COUY e 4] =

g OF KBS, %} M

Williamsburg County Recreation Commission RO %}

Williamsburg County Library ottt oo M

Williamsburg County Public Defender COPOLRUON ..o M

Williamsburg County Disabilities & Special Needs BOArd ... %]

Town of Hemingway )

City of Rock Hill ]
]
)

York County Library

Town of Clover ..o |

Y OO ottt 1% ]

i AUOHLY OF O Mil.oo o M

D OF YOMK COUY oo |

York County Disabilities & Special Needs Board I RO ;|

oy OFTEER CRY it M 4}

York County Hrstorical Commission e e ]

Upper Piedmont Transportation AUROLLY et |

Catawba Regional PG COUNCH ot 4}

Town of Smyrna st M

York County Convention and Visitors BUICRU oo (]

Municipal Association of South Carolina e M

ot CArolina EAUGAMiOn ASSOCIAON ... 4|

South Carolina Emnlovees ASSOCIBLON ottt M

South Carolina High School League st M

South Carolina Association of School BOBGS ot M

Central Midlands Regional PIAnning CoUnCil ... M

ol CAONR SIE CHedit UNION..... o M

South Carolina State Firemens Ass sociation....................... e e

South Carolina Law Enforcement Officers ASSOCIALON oo & ]

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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__STATISTICAL SECTION

NAME | SCRS PORS

South Carolma Association of School Administrators ........o.cocooveoovooooooooooooo %}
City of Aiken

...........................................................................................................................
.....................................................................................................................
R

....................................................................................................................

e T

Sheldon Township FIre AGENCY ..ooiiiiiiicie et
Town of Hilton Head ISIANM ..........cccovrvmmmrimnrieuieeeeeeeee s seeee e oo
City OF GOOSE CIEEK ... .vuuccvevreeieserisreien et eeseeeesess s e s s eeeee e eseeeee e

Pine Ridge Fire Departmen

Berkeley County Schoo

....................................................................................................

h-
]
7
-
=.
Q
=

............................................................................................

Bttt imisset it ir e rsreasanenttatstiranratesatnrrersatntnrrna

Charleston County Aviation AUROIILY ..........eoo..ovveoviieeeeree oo sceseeeoeeeses oo eeeeoeeeseo
St. Johns Fire District COMMISSION 11vvvevveoivoiviee oo

Town of Great Falls .......ooveeeeeeeioreeeeeoeeeeeeeeooeeeeeeee retetatetere it rertsreretessasnnanaaans

........................................................................................................

South Lynches Fire Department
TOWN OF ADAIEWS ..ottt s e eee s e e

RV TRIA T e

\ Piedmont Park F‘n‘p Dig ru\

Town of Ninety Six
Town of HAMPLON .....cuveoieeieececeeeeeeeee oo et e
City of NOrth Myrtle BEACH ........uvvveuuivveoiceeo oo esee oo sone

P
Town of Brias reliffe B TS RRRR

NENNRNERERANAEAENENAERAREAEAEREAEERRRER B
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TATISTICAL SECTION
NAME ' SCRS

Town of Hardeeville
Lugoff Fire District ............oo
Town of South Congaree

................................................

.................................

McCormick County School District ......,

oy T 3

Town of Holly Hill ......... oo
Croft Fire District ...

........................................................................................

...............................................................................................

Westview-Fairforest Fire Department
Roebuck Fire Department
Reidville Fire District...................
Spartanburg County School District 5

....................................................................................

.....................................................................

.....................................................................................
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STATISTICAL SECTION

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 1995
(amounts expressed in thousands)

RE  Cash Balance at Beginning of Year $ 367932
! Add Receipts:

| : Member Contributions $ 329,286
: % | Employer Contributions 404,621
: l : v Miscellaneous Contributions 6,443
Interest and Other Income 801,958
Investments Sold or Matured 65,985,031

Total Cash Receipts 67,527,339

Less Disbursements:

Benefit Payments 601,187
Administrative Expenses 10,056
Investments Purchased 66,233,191
Refunds 52,038
Total Cash Disbursements (66,896,472)
Cash Balance at End of Year $ 998,799

South Carolina Refirement Sysiems
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INVESTMENT SECTION

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

RICHARD A. ECKSTROM Wade Hampton Office Building '

Decemmber 11, 1995 Tl

The Honorable David M. Beasley
Members of the General Assembly of South Carolina

Dear Governor and Members:

As custodian of funds for the South Carolina Retirement Systems, 1 am

nitting the accompanying report on the South Carolina Retirement Systems’

investment portfolio for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995.

Because of strong earnings from securities purchased in prior years, when market
interest rates were much higher than those currently available, the earnings accrual rate
for the Retirement Systems’ investment portfolio for 1994-95 exceeded the assumed
actuarial rate of 8%. Based on the current low level of market interest rates, I expect
the accrual rate to decline in future periods.

Authorized investments for the retirement funds are constitutional'ly and

statutorily restricted to debt instruments. These instruments are in effect loans to the
United States Treasury, Federal Agencies, United States Corporations, Commercial
Banks, and Savings and Loan Associations. Investments of retirement funds are made
with the primary objectives of safety, liquidity, and yield. To meet those objectives, the
State Treasurer’s Office carefully evaluates the quality of entities in which investments

are made, communlcates regularly with the South Carolina Retirement Systems

cts to changes in market

L 2 = ] A 2iaRAAnww

vananrdinag th

regaraing i their fun

conditions.
Investment income is the predominant source of revenue for the four Retirement

Systems. Investment income, combined with taxpayer-supported agency and employee

contributions, provides the basis for retirement benefit payments to current and future
retirees and beneficiaries.

Telephone (803) 734-2101 Fax (803) 734-2039

South Carolina Retirement Systems
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INVES TMENT SEC "TION
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December 11, 1995
Page 2

As of July 1, 1994 (the date of the latest actuarial valuation), there was
approximately seventy-five cents worth of assets for every dollar of liabilities in the
Retirement Systems. The State Treasurer’s Office is working with officials of the
Retirement Systems and other State officials to determine how to (i) keep the gap
between assets and liabilities from widening and (ii) shrink the gap between assets and
liabilities. The State assures the payment of benefits to current and future retirees and
beneficiaries in full. However, we must move toward full funding of the Retirement

Systems.
Very truly yours,
(). ()
L Richard Eckstrom
State Treasurer
| RE:ecd

%

oo
?’fﬁ'g«__ 2 ,_:%%’\ S
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INVESTMENT SECTION

™ h ol m M m
UMMARY OF INVESTMENT GROWTH

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(amounts expressed in thousands)

AMORTIZED NET INCOME
YEAR ENDED COST OF % INCREASE FROM % INCREASE AVERAGE

JUNE 30, INVESTMENTS* FOR YEAR INVESTMENTS FOR YEAR YIELD

1995 $ 11,247,852 7.1% 5 926,003 10.1% 8.89%

1994 10,499,754 11.8% 841,332 1.3% 8.83%

1993 9,391,101 11.2% 830,466 10.8% 977%

1992 8,447,545 13.2% 749,808 10.4% 9.89%

1991 7,461,712 13.1% 678,984 8.3% 10.15%

1990 6,598,570 12.0% 626,723 15.2% - 10.57%

1989 5,891,965 13.9% 544,156 12.3% 10.35%

1988 5,171,978 14.0% 484,487 2.2% 10.51%

1987 4,535,750 14.1% 474,080 -1.9% 11.80%

1986 3,974,878 20.1% 483,114 29.1% 14.20%

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT GROWTH
POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(amounts expressed in thousands)
AMORTIZED NET INCOME
YEAR ENDED COST OF % INCREASE FROM % INCREASE AVERAGE
JUNE 30, INVESTMENTS* FOR YEAR INVESTMENTS FOR YEAR YIELD

1995 $ 1,218,230 8.9% $ 97,561 8.3% 8.71%
1994 1,118,922 11.8% 90,088 5.7% 8.88%
1993 1,000,503 15.9% 85,230 10.7% 9.58%
1992 863,144 14.3% 77,018 15.4% 10.00%
199i 755,081 153.9% 66,745 5.5% 9.96%
1990 651,617 17.9% 63,030 23.7% 11.04%
1589 552,766 20.5% 50,966 9.6% 10.61%
1988 458,829 15.5% 46,512 13.0% 11.49%
1987 397,258 16,4% 41,175 0.2% 1181%
1986 341,352 22.7% 41,108 35.6% 14.21%

Amortized cost includes investment categories classified as cash equivalents for financial statement

Purposes.

South Carolina Refirement Systems
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INVESTMENT SECTION _ ‘

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT GROWTH
GENERAL ASSEMBLY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

A BENELIVER ] = W7 A miY

(amounts expressed in thousands)

AMORTIZED NET INCOME
YEAR ENDED COST OF % INC ASE FROM % INCREASE  AVERAGE
JUNE 30, INVESTMENTS* FORY R INVESTMENTS FOR YEAR YIELD
1995 3 29,323 -0.6% $ 2,490 6.1% 8.84%
1994 29,506 12.8% 2,346 5.0% 8.80%
1993 26,160 8.5% 2,234 1.8% 9.30%
1992 24,102 9.3% 2,194 $.3% 9.98%
1991 22,052 8.3% 2,007 5.7% 9.93%
1990 20,366 10.3% 1,899 9.8% 10.28%
1989 18,468 11.5% 1,729 17.6% 10.38%
1988 16,563 13.7% 1,470 1.9% 9.91%
1987 14,574 13.7% 1,442 7.3% 1L11%
1986 12,818 18.8% 1,344 20.6% 12.07%

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT GROWTH
JUDGES & SOLICITORS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

(amounts expressed in thousands)

YEAR ENDED COST OF % INCREASE FROM % INCREASE AVERAGE
JUNE 30, INVESTMENTS* FOR YEAR INVESTMENTS FOR YEAR YIELD
1995 3 58,402 7.8% $ 4,906 7.2% 9.11%
1994 54,197 16.6% 4,576 12.4% 9.52%
1993 46,487 12.6% 4,070 10.8% 9.72%
1992 41,289 15.9% 3,673 14.3% 10.03%
1991 . 35,616 10.4% 3214 8.9% 9.94%
1990 32,269 18.1% 2,951 12.2% 10.42%
1989 27,314 17.0% 2,630 20.4% 10.95%
1988 23,345 19.3% 2,185 8.2% 10.73%
1987 19,574 20.5% 2,019 -23.1% 11.95%
1986 16,241 336% 2,623 64.7% 20.36%

Average yield is calculated using the following equation:
1

1/2 ( A+B-1)

A =Tund value at the beginning of the year

B = Fund value at the end of the year

[ =Earned investment income dnrmn the ves

el 25000 QU JLa

'1

Note:

The Systems, effective 7-1-86 adopted the accrual basis of accounting for recognization of interest income and the effective
interest method for amoritzation of premiums and discounts.

* Amortized cost includes investment categories classified as cash equivalents for financial statement

purposes.

Jl
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FAPI FYILUTIR L TIR VPFY YVV " WTIY “a A ¥
1 LIVILIVE D, 1Oy
(amounts expressed in thousands)
June 30, 1995 June 30, 1994 June 30, 1993
Par Amortized % of Par Amortized % of Par Amortizied % af
Value Cost Total Value Cost Total Value Cost Total
Shori-ierm invesimenis:
* Repurchase agreements 3 884,550 3 884,550 786% § 313,035 M 313,035 298% § 447290 $ 447290 4.76%
Treasury bills 120,000 119,307 1.27%
Dis 292,065 290,104 31.09%
Commercial paper 10,600 9,983 09% 35,000 34,809 .33% 148,400 147.671 1.57%
. 894,550 894,533 7.95% 348,035 347,844 3.31% 1,007,755 1,004,372 10.69%
U.S. Government agencies
& goverament insured:
Treasury notes 103,750 103,580 92% 117,350 117,082 1.12% 227,350 226,832 2.42%
Treasury bonds 1,054,777 1,016,489 9.04% 1,065,777 1,025,717 9.77% 1,065,777 1,024,562 1091%
Treasury bonds .
{zero coupons) 2,921,320 1,396,231 12.41% 2,921,320 1,257,233 11.97% 2,941,320 1,155,895 12.31%
U.S. Government agencies 3,950,063 2,403,480 21.37% 1,816,974 2,230,654 21.24% 3,676,195 2,211,596 23.55%
Insured merchant marine
bonds 18,930 18,930 .20%
8,029,910 4,919,780 43.74% 7,921,421 4,630,686 44.10% 7,929,572 4,637 815 49.39%
Corporate bonds:
Industrials 706,105 694,513 6.20% 515,905 507,176 4.83% 288,680 277,896 2.96%
Utilities 2,341,828 2,265,518 20.10% 2,202,402 2,131,399 20.30% 1,884,618 1,824,210 19.42%
Financial & other 2,517,715 2,473,511 22.00% 2,924,991 2,882,649 27.46% 1,667,651 1,646,808 17.54%
5,565,648 5,433,539 48.30% 5,643,298 5,521,224 52.59% 3,840,949 3,789,914 39.92%
Total investments $ 14,490,108 $ 11,247,852 100.00% § 13912754 § 16,499,754 100.00% $ 12,778,276 s 9,432,101 100.00%
“Note: Repurchase agreements and commercial paper were classified as cash equivalents for fi | purposes.
POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Jume 30, 1995 Juiie 30, 1594 June 38, 1993
Par Amortized % of Par Amortized % of Par Amortized % of
Value Cost Total Value Cost “Total Value Cost Total
Short-term investments: .
* Repurchase agreements $ 99,410 $ 99,410 8.16% § 15,030 s 15,030 1.34% % 96,310 $ 96,310 9.63%
Discount notes . 11,32% 11,232 1.12%
99,410 99,410 8.16% 15,030 15,030 1.34% 107,635 107,542 10.75%
U .S. Government age:
& government insured:
Treasury notes 28,500 28,430 2.33% 28,500 28,401 2.54% 28,500 28,374 2.83%
Treasury bonds 94 810 91,327 7.50% 94 R1Q 91,178 2.158% 94,810 01,046 2.10%
Treasury bonds
(zero coupons) 199,717 90,908 746% 199,717 82,190 734% 199, 74324 7.43%
U.S. Government agencies 367416 289,648 21.78% 356,359 277,468 24 80% 337,618 254,301 25.42%
Insured merchant marine
bonds 72 72 01%
690,443 500313 41.07% 679,386 479,237 42 83% 660,714 448117 44,79%
Corporate bonds:
Industrials 70,430 69,357 5.6%% 46.430 45,793 4.09% 31,930 31,721 317%
Utilities 314,032 305,717 25.10% 299,611 292,090 26.11% 232,335 224,742 22.46%
Financial & other 245,979 243,433 19.98% 289,467 286,772 25.63% 190,093 188,381 18.83%
630,441 618,507 50.77% 635,508 624,655 55.83% 454,358 448 844 44.46%
Total investments $ 1,420,294 s 1,218,230 160.00% § 1,325,924 $ 1,118,922 100.00% $ 1,222,707 $ 1,000,503 100.00%
*Note: Repurchase agreements were classified as cash equivalents for financial statement purposes.
South Carolina Retirement Systems
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Short-term investments;
*Repurchase agreements

U.S. Government agencies

&
& go

Treasury notes

Treasury bonds

Treasury bonds

{zero coupons)

U.S. Government agencies
insured merchant marine
bonds

Corporate bonds:
Industrials
Utilities
Financial & other

Total investments

Short-term investments:
*Repurchase agreements

U.S. Government agencies

anusramant inasead.
& sovernment insured:

Treasury notes
Treasury bonds
Treasury bonds
(zero couporis)
U.S. Government agencies

Corporate bonds:
Industrials
Utilities
Financial & other

INVESTMENT SECTION

INVESTMENTS

GENERAL ASSEMBLY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

(amounts expressed in thousands)

June 30, 1995 June 30, 1994

Par Amortized % of Par Amortized % of Par Amorhzed % of

Value Cost Total Value Cost Total Value Cost Total
$ 2435 % 2,439 8.32% 2,305 2,305 781% § 2,550 2,550 9.75%
2,438 2,439 8.32% 2,305 2,305 7.81% 2,550 2,550 2.75%
1,500 1,498 5.11% 1,500 1,497 5.07% 1,500 1495 571%
3,420 3,303 11.26% 3,420 3,298 11.18% 3,420 3,294 12.59%
5,347 2,719 9.27% 5,347 2,483 8.42% 5,347 2,268 8.67%
8,164 6,813 23.23% 8,673 7,255 24.5%% 9,982 8.327 31.83%
93 93 36%
18,431 14,333 48.87% 18,940 14,533 49,26% 20,342 15,477 59.16%

1,400 1,373 4.68% 500 495
6,940 6,803 23.20% 7,695 7,566 25.64% 5,500 5,413 20.69%
4,413 4,379 14.93% 4,643 4,607 15.61% 2,742 2,720 10.40%
12,753 12,555 42.31% 12,838 17,668 42.93%, 3,242 3,133 31.09%
$33,619 $ 29,327 100.00% $34,083 29,506 100.00%  $ 31,134 26,160 100.00%
*Note: Repurchase agreements were classified as cash equivalents for financial statement purposes.
INVESTMENTS
{(amounts expressed in thousands)
June 30, 1995 June 30, 1994 June 30, 1993

Par Amortized % of Par Amortized o of Tar Amortized Vo of

Value Cost Total Value Cost Total Value - Cost Total
$ 2,075 $ 2,075 3.55% 2,425 2,425 447% § 2, 2,150 4.62%
2,075 ] 2,075 3.55% 2,425 2,425 4.47% 2,i50 2,150 4.62%
1,500 1,498 2.56% 1,500 1,497 2.76% 1,500 1,495 3.22%
3,300 3,236 5.54% 3,300 3,232 5.96% 3,300 3,229 6.95%
6,000 4,246 7.27% 6,000 3,900 7.20% 6,000 3,582 7.70%
30,710 ‘ 20,79 3561% 30,925 18,502 34.14% 29,720 16,787 _ 36.11%
41,510 29,779 50.99% 41,725 27,131 50.06% 40,520 25,093 53.98%
4,500 4,410 7.55% 1,500 1,495 2.76% 1,000 1,000 2.15%
11,990 11,790 20.19% 12,995 12,800 23.62% 12,600 12,373 26.62%
10,400. 10,348 17.72% 10,400 10,346 19.09% 5,900 5,871 12.63%
26,890 26,548 45.46% 24,895 24,641 45.47% 19,500 19,244 41.40%
$ 70475  § 58,402  100.00% $ 69,045 54,197 100.00% §62,170 46487 100.00%

Total investments

*Note:Repurchase agreements were classificd as cash equivalents for financiat

R e a1 S e

I!

South Carolina Retirement Systems

103




INVESTMENT SECTION
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SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Book . Book % Book
Value Aceretion/ Value Value
Type of Investment June 30, 1994 Purchases Sales Amortization  June 30, 1995 June 30, 1995
Short-term investments: .
* Repurchase agreements $ 313,035 $ 49437485  $ 48,865,970 $ 884,550 7.86%
Commercial paper 34,809 9,901 35,000 § 273 9,983 .09%
347,844 49,447,386 48,900,970 273 894,533 7.95%
U.S. Governmeit agencies
& government insured:
Treasury notes 117,082 13,600 98 103,580 > 92%
Treasury bonds 1,025,717 10,506 1,278 1,016,489 9.04%
Treasury bonds
(zero coupons} 1,257,233 82,906 72,005 128,097 1,396,231 12.41%
U.S. Government agencies 2,230,654 769,936 648,307 51,197 2,403,480 21,37%
4,630,686 852,842 744,418 180,670 4,919,780 43.74%
Corporate bonds:
Industrials 507,175 187,427 133 44 694,513 6.17%
Utilities 2,131,400 188,301 54,091 93) 2,265,515 : 20.14%
Financial & other 2,882,649 173,102 583,582 1,342 2,473,511 21.99%
5,521,224 548,830 637,806 1,291 5,433,539 48.31%
Total investments $ 10499754 $ 50849058 $ 50283,194 § 182,234 § 11247852 100.00%

*Note: Repurchase agreements were classified as cash equivalents for financial statement purposes.

INVESTMENTS SUMMARY OF BOOK VALUE
POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Bagk Book % Book
Value Accretion/ Value Yalue
Type of Investment June 30, 1994 Purchases Sales Amortization June 30, 1995 June 30, 1995
Short-term investments:
* Repurchase agreements $ 15030 $ 14988305 $ 14,903,925 $ 99410 8.16%
15,030 14,988,305 14,903,925 99,410 8.16%
U.S. Government agencies
& govemment insured:
Treasury notes 28,401 $ 29 28,430 2.33%
Treasury bonds 91,178 149 91,327 7.50%
Treasury bonds
(zero coupons) 82,190 8,718 90,908 7.46%
U.S. Government agencies 277.468 165,615 156,112 2,677 . 289,648 . 23.78% -
479,237 165,615 156,112 11,573 500,313 41.07%
Corporate bonds:
Industnals 45,793 23,550 i4 69,357 5.69%
292,090 16,642 3,064 49 305n7 25.10%
Fmanctal & other 286,772 13,655 57,100 106 243,433 19.98%
624,655 53,847 60,164 169 618,507 50.77%
Total investments $ 1,118,922 $ 15207,767 § 15120201 $ 11,742 § 1,218,230 100.00%

Note: Repurchase agreements were classified as cash equivalents for financial statement purposes.
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INVESTMENT SECTION

MENTS SUMMARY OF BOOK VALU
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GENERAL ASSEMBLY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(amounis expressed in thousands)

INVEST

AAN ¥

Book Book % Book
Value Accretion/ Value Value
Type of Investment June 30, 1994 Purchases Sales Amortization  June 30,1995 - June 30, 1995
Short-term investments:
* Repurchase agreements $ 2,305 § 202,615 $ 202,485 $ 2,435 8.30%
) 2,305 202,615 202,485 2,435 8.30%
U.S. Government agencies
& govemment insured:
Treasury notes 1,497 $ 1 1,498 5.11%
Treasury bonds 3,298 s 3,303 11.26%
Treasury bonds .
(zero coupons) 2,483 236 2,719 9.27%
1.S. Government agencies 7,255 4,550 5,058 66 6,813 2323%
14,533 4,550 5,058 308 14,333 48.88%
Corporate bonds:
Industrials 495 877 1,372 4.68%
Utilities 7,566 762 6,804 23.20%
Financial & other 4,607 229 ] 4,379 14.93%
12,668 877 1 12,555 42.82%
Total investments $ 29,506 % 208,042 § 208534 $ 300 % 29,323 100.00%
*Note: Repurchase agreements were classified as cash equivalents for financial statement purposes
INVESTMENT SUMMARY OF BOOK VALUE
JUDGES & SOLICITORS RETIREMENT SYSTEM.
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Book Book % Book
Value Accretion/ Value Value
Type of Invesiment June 38, 1994 Purchases Saies Amoriization June 35, 1535 June 30, 1955
Short-term investments:
* Repurchase agreements $ 2425 $ 359,335 § 359,885 $ 2,075 3.55%
2,425 359,535 359,885 . 2,075 3.55%
U.S. Governiment agencies .
& government insured:
Treasury notes 1,497 $ H 1,498 2.56%
Treasury bonds 3,232 4 3,236 5.54%
Treasury bond
{zero coupens) 3,900 348 4246 7.27%
U.S. Govemment agencies 18,502 14,000 12,205 502 20,799 35.61%
27,131 14,000 12,205 . 853 29,779 50.99%
Corporate bonds:
Industrials 1,495 2,914 1 4,410 7.55%
Utilities 12,800 1,012 2 11,790 20.19%
Financial & other 10,346 2 10,348 17.72%
. 24,641 . 2914 1,012 5 26,548 45.46%
Total investments 3 54,197 § 376,449 $ 373,102 § 858 $ 58,402 100.00%

*Note: Repurchase agreements were classified as cash equivalents for financial statement purposes.




SUMMARY OF MARKET VALUE OF INVESTMENTS
(amounts expressed in thousands)
South Carolina Retirement System Police Officers Retirement System

1l % of % of
T Market Value Market Market Value Market
Bl 6-30-94 6-30-95 Value 6-30-94 6-30-95 Value

] “

.‘ Short-term investments:

: Repurchase agreements $ 313,035 $ 884,550 7.08% $ 15030 $ 99,410 7.44%
& Commercial paper 34792 9,901 08%
ey 347,827 894,451 7.16% 15,030 99,410 7.44%
] :A U.S. Government agencies

SH i & government insured:

gl Treasury notes 123,907 108,574 0.87% 30,355 30,399 2.28%
Sy Treasury bonds 1,320,376 1,385,744 11.09% 117,313 124,610 9.33%
s }; Treasury bonds (zero coupons) 1,444,215 1,735,937 . 13.89% 96,251 115,781 8.67%
U.S. Government agencies 2,331,035 2,657,888 21.26% 290,495 315,433 23.62%
: * ‘ 5,219,533 5,888,143 47.10% 534,414 586,223 43.90%
i

i Corporate bonds:

?" 3 Industrials 509,404 755,271 6.04% 47,060 77,051 5.77%
' j : Utilities 2,170,421 2,447,646 19.58% 295,902 327,206 24.50%
ik Financial & other 2,788,621 2,515,475 20.12% 273,738 245,501 18.38%
%E 5,468,446 5,718,392 45.74% 616,700 649,758 48.66%
Eﬁ Total investments $ 11,035806 $ 12,500,986 100.00% $ 1,166,144 $ 1,335,391 100.00%

e ————

§/>
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INVESTMENT SECTION _

General Assembiy Retirement Sysiem

Judges & Solicitors Retirement System

% of % of
Market Value Market Market Value Market
6-30-94 6-30-95 Value 6-30-94 6-30-95 Value

$ 2,305 g 2435 748% % 2,425 $ 2,075 3.24%

2,305 2,435 7.48% 2,425 2,075 3.24%

1,575 1,543 4.74% 1,575 1,543 241%

4,114 4,401 13.52% 4,025 4,270 6.67%

2,875 3379 10.18% 4,29 4,783 7.47%

7,154 7,633 23.45% 19,713 23,471 36.66%

16,318 16,956 52.09% _ 29,609 34,067 53.21%

483 1,524 4.68% 1,591 5,039 7.87%

7,598 7,264 22.31% 13,005 12,620 19.71%

4,376 4,375 13.44% 9,673 10,223 15.97%

12,457 13,163 40.43% 24,269 27,882 43.55%

$ 31,080 $ 32,554 100.00% $ 56,303 $ 64,024 100.00%
Quantity 1,200
~ 7 tandadid
Printing Cost $5,780
TTnet At (3]
WJAliL UL WT. UL
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